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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever

for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Health Group Inc. (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively refer to as the “Group”). The Directors, having made all reasonable enquires, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded

on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Mr. William Xia GUO
Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Michael SU ( appointed on the 18 May 2016)
Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG (Resigned on 18 May 2016)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. Shou Yuan WU
Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter
Dr. Bin Hui NI

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Dr. Shou Yuan WU

Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter

Dr. Bin Hui NI

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter

Mr. William Xia GUO
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Scotia Centre

4th Floor, P.O. Box 2804
George Town, Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE IN CHINA
Haitong Commercial Center
No.11,North West 3rd Ring Road,
Haidian District,

Beijing, China, 100089

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit B, 19/F,Times Media Centre,

133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Deutsche Bank
Agricultural Bank of China, Beijing Branch

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4" Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITORS
KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.

GEM STOCK CODE
8225

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://www.chgi.net.
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FERE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS:

The Group now stands at the forefront of the most exciting and
dynamic shift in the history of health industry. With the help of
challenge and opportunity provided by Chinese clinic revolution, the
Group is focusing on building itself into a group corporation
providing comprehensive terminal medical under
international architecture, from hospital clinical research and product

service

promotion service, hospital management service, mobile

telemedicine service, special expertise therapy service to

rehabilitation and medical tours service.

With the changing landscape of commercial way of pharma power
house in China, the Group commits to replace traditional Contract
Service Organisation (“CSQO”) sales model in China to Contract
Research Organisation (“CRO”) and CSO combination model. The
Group combines strategic thinking with the ability to capture and
analyze complex clinical data to effectively demonstrate real-world
outcomes. Our reach extends to field based teams who connect with
payers on a local level to help communicate the product value story.
The Group offers Medical science liaisons, medical marketing
programs bridge the gap between the clinical and commercial phases
of product development, providing expertise across a broad range of
pre- and post-launch opportunities.

All of CRO-registered clinical trial and PMS or outcome research
help to create the “actives” with KOLs and all key hospitals and build
up Site Management Organisation (“SMO”) in all key hospital. We
will leverage all of the research*actives”+“SMO” into commercial
medical marketing. All those will replace traditions sales in China
and meet all those compliance challenges in China .

WE ARE BUILDING THE FOLLOWING:

With regarding of Hospital management service: Our Group has tried
to operate mobile Internet health care and drug delivery service like
‘Chinese best doctor’, ‘My doctor 999’, and currently is preparing for
providing satellite mobile medical service.

With Special mental illness therapy service: We have already begun to
build Centure Nervous System (“CNS”) doctors groups and expect
our CNS BOAO #JE1# I hospital project is also in progress as
well.

With respect to financial operating area, the Group has already been
on the healthy track of profit -making.

In a word, our Group has completed transition from the type of
pharmaceutical technology to new health care model under the new
creative internet architecture. We will grasp the opportunity of the
Chinese health care reform and take advantage of a dozen years’
experience to create physical and spiritual welfare for the patients,
staff and shareholders.

By order of the Board
William Xia Guo
Chairman
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HBRE
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Year ended 31 December

BETA=Z+T—HILFE

2016 2015
SRR —A R
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AT NHET
Results ES
Revenue W s 20,241 20,497
Profit/(Loss)for the year ENEF (ETE) 2,127 (3,487)
Assets and Liabilities G N A
Total Assets QY 12,845 18,951
Total Liabilities N =Fie 38,011 58,619
Deficit of Shareholders' funds B A (25,166) (39,668))

. The Group recorded consolidated turnover of RMB20,241,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (“this Year”), which represents
approximately 1.25% decrease from RMB20,497,000 in year 2015.

. The Group recorded profit before taxation of RMB2,085,000 this Year, as
compared with loss before taxation of RMB3,376,000 in year 2015.

. The Group recorded operating profit of RMB2,885,000 this Year, before
deducting financial expense of RMB800,000, as compared with
operating profit of RMB 172,000, (before deducting financial expenses of
RMB817,000 on loss on revaluation of derivative financial liabilities of

RMB2,731,000). Operating profit increased by 1577%.

. Basic earnings per share is 0.23 cents in 2016, while basic loss per share

was 0.37 cents in 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS

The Group recorded profit before taxation of RMB2,085,000 this
Year, as compared with loss before taxation of RMB3,376,000 in
the corresponding period last year. Profit this year was primarily
attributed to no fair value loss on revaluation of derivative
financial liabilities arising from the unlisted convertible notes
issued on 24 December 2014. While loss in last year was
primarily attributed to the fair value loss of RMB2,731,000 on
convertible notes. After deducting the factor from the fair value
loss of Convertible Notes, the Group still recorded loss of RMB
645,000 from operations in the corresponding period last year.

The Group recorded operating profit of RMB2,085,000 for this
Year, without considering the financial expense of RMB800,000,
as compared with operating profit of RMB172,000 in year
2015.The Group recorded cash outflow from operation activities
of RMB6,893,000 for this Year, as compared with net cash
generated from operation activities of RMB 3,390, 000 in year
2015.

The Group recorded revenue of RMB20,241,000 for this Year,
which approximately  1.25% drop from
RMB20,497,000 in the corresponding period last year. The 2016
consolidated turnover included approximately RMB 12,279,000

represents

derived from the contracted clinical research services (VPS),
amounted to 60.66% of the total revenue; approximately
RMB5,473,000 from the post marketing research and academic
promotion services, amounted t027.04% of the total revenue and
approximately RMB2,489,000 from other medical services,
amounted t012.3% of the total revenue. The almost same in
revenue for two years was mainly due to (a) the terminal of
clinical medicine of research-type extension based on the clinical
research i.e .the post marketing research and academic promotion
services, which is one of the four growth-driving platforms was
widely recognized by the markets. The revenue in post marketing
research and academic promotion services increased by
RMB52,000 this Year.
revenue in clinical research services (VPS) of approximately

(b) The Group recorded an increase

RMB4,000 for this Year. (c) Revenue in other medical services
decreased by RMB313,000 to RMB2,489,000 compared to that
in 2015.

Total consolidated general and administrative expenses were
approximately RMB14,219,000 representing an increase of
approximately RMB164,000 compared with approximately
RMB14,055,000 of the corresponding period last year. The
increase was primarily due to the employees’ wages rising and

decrease in provision of litigation claims .
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 24 December 2014, the Company issued unlisted convertible
notes with a face value of US$1,000,000 and a maturity date of
24 December 2016. The notes are unsecured, bear no interest and
have a term of 2 years. The noteholder has right to convert the
notes into ordinary shares at any time up to maturity at a
conversion price of HK$0.1.

On 31 December 2016, Winsland Agents Limited exercised its
rights to convert all the Convertible Notes into 77,500,000 of the
Company’s ordinary shares, representing approximately 8.47%
of the issued share capital of the Company immediately before
the Conversion and approximately 7.81% of the issued share
capital of the Company immediately after the Conversion.

Share capital increased by RMB6,974,000 and capital reserve
increased by RMB3,977,000 after the conversion, and
convertible notes were removed from current liability for this
Year while the fair values of convertible notes in debt and
derivative financial instrument part are listed as current liability
RMB5,779,000 and RMB4,447,000 respectively in 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the loss on revaluation of financial
derivative liability in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for this year is nil. (2015:
RMB2,731,000).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets and its total liabilities exceeded its total assets
by approximately RMB28,937,000 (2015: net current liabilities
of approximately RMB44,471,000) and approximately RMB
25,166,000  (2015:  net

RMB39,668,000 ) respectively.

liabilities  of  approximately

As at 31 December 2016, the gearing ratio (calculated on the
basis of total bank borrowing divided by total assets at the end of
the year) of the Group was 0.12 (2015: 0.08). The increase was
due to the decrease of total assets this Year.

Meanwhile, considering the working capital and long term fund
demand for future development, the Group will consider to raise
further funds through bank loans, issuance of new shares,
convertible notes, and issuance of new debts, etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the Group's transactions were substantially
denominated in Renminbi ("RMB"). As such, the foreign
currency risk facing the Group is limited. Currently, the Group
has not adopted any financial instrument for hedging purposes.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Aiming at long-term development, the Group keeps pursuing its
business strategy of transforming from a leading technology
transfer supplier to a health care service group under the internet
architecture.

The Group has managed to establish a new drug technology
development and value-added services business model for whole
value chains such as preclinical studies, Contracteds Clinical
Research Services (VPS), regulatory affair (RA) services and
post marketing research and academic promotion services
(PMS),and devoted to build four growth-driving platforms, such
as the medical management platform under the internet
architecture, the terminal of clinical medicine of research-type
extension based on the clinical research, rehabilitation therapy
industry platforms and special features of hospital industry
platforms.

The Group continued its investment in the enhancement of
marketing capability and the expansion of market network, and
introduced a new drug technology development and value-added
services business model for whole value chains in the domestic
market under the brand of Venturepharm, while striving to
establish and expand overseas markets under the brand of
VPS-CRO. During this Year, the Group not only focused on
business expansion, but also paid more attention to the
enhancement of brand value and the improvement of
professional capability, aiming at becoming a comprehensive
and reliable technology and service provider with the most

prestigious brand and leading technologies.

POST MARKETING RESEARCH AND ACADEMIC
PROMOTION SERVICES (PMS)

This Year is a milestone year for company strategic transition.
The Group made best use of its VPSCRO's 15 years of efforts
and strong relationship with leaders and experts through 400
clinical bases for the marketing and clinical research of new
drugs to list and clinical research, brought revenue of RMB
5,473,000 for the second time.
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CONTRACTED CLINICAL RESEARCH SERVICE (VPS)

Taken clinical study as the prime focus, the Group has
established the most integrated service in the country, which
provides a series of services ranging from phase I clinical and
bioequivalence studies, phase II-11I clinical studies, and phase IV
post-marketing clinical study, to data management and medical
statistics, and medical administration related service.
Meanwhile, the Group makes a great efforts to improve the
professional capability involving the above mentioned services
and has preliminarily established 13 professional research
institutions  including Venturepharm-CBI  phase I clinical
research center, VPS-mart phase IV clinical research and
academic SAS-Venturepharm  data
management and medical statistics center, VP-Porsche RA
service center, OHH-VP Pacific-Asia clinical research institution
for oncology, TangXi-VP Pacific-Asia clinical
institution for Diabetes, CNSVP Psychoneurologic and pain
management Pacific-Asia clinical research institution, CV-VP
Cardiovascular Pacific-Asia clinical research center, AIDS and
hepatitis Pacific-Asia clinical research institution, DermNova
Pacific-Asia clinical research institution for dermatosis and
gynecologic disease and TCM-VP clinical research center for

natural drug and traditional Chinese medicine, etc.

promotion  center,

research

In the meantime, the Group has built a nation-wide network with
bases in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou and offices in over 30
provincial capital cities for clinical monitoring and academic
promotion, covering over 80% hospitals which have been
authorized to conduct clinical research. The Group has the
capacity of operating more than 60 phase I and BE projects each
year and conducting 50 phase II-III projects
simultaneously. Meanwhile, the Group is able to carry out 4
phase IV clinical trials with large sample size (2,000 subjects) at

clinical

the same period.
PROSPECTS

The Group will continuously push forward the strategic
transition from a leading technology transference supplier to a
health care service group under the internet architecture. The
Group will also continuously strengthen the terminal of clinical
medicine of research-type extension based on the clinical
research, at the same time push forward the construction of
medical management platform under the internet architecture,
rehabilitation therapy industry platforms, and special features of
hospital industry platform with steady steps.

The Board will also review and assess of potential project or
investment according to reliable principles, in order to improve
the group business performance and return to shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

During this Year, there was no significant investment.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees. In addition to salaries and
bonuses. The Group also provided various other benefits to its
employees. Employee benefits included medical and pension

contributions and share options schemes.

The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe
benefits of the employees and rewarded employees in accordance
with the Group’s business performance. In addition, training and
development opportunities for the employees were also provided
by the Group.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules 5.28 to 5.33. The primary duties of the
audit committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual reports,
interim reports and quarterly reports (b) to discuss and review
with the auditor of the Company on the scope and findings of the
audit; and (c) to supervise the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, and

provide advice and comments to the Board.

The audit committee has three members comprising the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Dr. Shou Yuan Wu, Mr.
Mark Gavin Lotter and Dr. Binhui NI. The chairman of the audit
committee is Dr. Shou Yuan WU who possesses extensive

experience in finance and accounting.

The audit committee has reviewed and approved the consolidated
financial statements for this Year, including the accounting
principles and new and revised accounting standards adopted by
the Group, and discussed matters relating to auditing, internal

controls and financial reporting.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUO, aged 52, is the Chairman, executive
Director of the Group. Mr. Guo is responsible for strategic
planning and development, overall management of the Group.
Mr. Guo obtained with a Master degree in science from
University of Toronto in March 1997. Mr. Guo has also
completed various approved courses for the degree of Master of
Business Administration in Heriot-Watt University and the Judge
institute EMBA in University of Cambridge. Before establishing
the Group in December 1998, Mr. Guo had worked for two
pharmaceutical companies in Canada, namely Ortho-McNeil Inc.
under Johnson & Johnson and Novopharm Limited under Teva
Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd as research scientist and process

development manager, respectively.

Mr. Guo used to be the director and CEO of Common Wealth
Technology Inc listed on NSDAQ and vice president of All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce Medical Pharmaceutical
Chamber, he also got National model worker title and The
National May 1 Labour Medal, and was prized as ‘2005 Excellent
creative enterpriser’ in 2005 by BCCC(got the scholarship for
EMBA study in University of Cambridge)

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, aged 49, is an executive Director. Dr.
Song is responsible for Clinical Research. Dr. Song graduated
from China Concord Medical University with a Doctorate degree
in clinical medicine in July 1995. She is also a Registered
Pharmacist in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in February
2000, Ms. Song had served as general manager of Beijing
Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Michael SU , aged 45, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director since 18 May 2016.Mr. Su formerly worked for Fila
China Limited,
Venturepharm Pharmaceuticals (Hainan)Limited, China Health

Shanghai Pharmceutic Group Limited,
Group Inc. ,etc. and engaged as finance director and similar
positons .He held bachelor degree of Hydrolic Engineering from
Tsinghua University and Master degree of Business Management
from Shanghai Jiaotong University . He has near 20 years of
experience in financial management and more than 10 years of

experience in pharmaceutic industry.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Shou Yuan Wu, aged 44, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit
committee since 26 December 2011. Dr. Wu is the director of
Wisdom Management Consulting CO., Limited, and is the
director of ASIA CERAMICS HOLDINGS PLC which is a
listing company in British AIM, etc. Dr. Wu graduated from
Ministry of Finance with a doctor’s degree, from Capital
University Of Economic And Business with a master’s degree,
and is a senior member of British ACCA, he is one of the leading
accountant elite of Ministry of Finance (Certified Public
Accounting Series), he has over twenty years experience of

accounting and finance.

Dr. Bing Hui NI, aged 58, has been appointed as the independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of nomination
committee, as well as one of the members of audit committee and
remuneration committee since 31 March 2015. Dr Bing Hui NI
acts as Vice President in Sanofi, and head of external Science &
Partnering-Asia Pacific. Dr. Ni holds a PhD in molecular
pharmacology from University of Toronto under fellowship and
post-doctoral fellowship in Clinical Pharmacology from National
Institute of Health. Dr. Ni has over 40 publications in journals
including Science, PNAS and served as adjunct professors in
several universities in USA and Singapore. Dr. Ni has over 20
years of healthcare industry experience in the US and Asia/China.
He served in senior scientific and managerial positions for several
top Fortune 500 companies, including Eli Lilly (being Action
Group Chair, US), S'BIO (being Vice President/ head of Biology,
Singapore,) and Covance China (being General Manager, China)

Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter, aged 54, has been appointed as the
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of
remuneration committee, as well as one of the members of audit
committee and nomination committee since 17 February 2015.
Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter holds a Bachelor of Science in Pharmacy,
and Master in Business Leadership of University of South Africa
degrees and has over twenty five years of work experience largely
in the pharmaceutical industry. He started his career in South
Africa and where he has held senior management positions which
included Chief Executive Officer of Astra Pharmaceuticals
(South Africa) and Chief Executive Officer of Aspen Healthcare
(South Africa). He has more than 10 years’ experience in China
where he held a number of senior positions including Vice
President of Commercial Operations of AstraZeneca China,
and Chief Executive Officer of Nova Med
Pharmaceuticals and Chief Executive Officer SciClone - China

Founder

Operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 47 of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVE

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 107.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the Company’s listed shares during this Year. The
Company and its subsidiaries also did not redeem, purchase or
cancel any of their redeemable securities.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during this year and up to the date

of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

3 years from his re-appointment on 30

William Xia GUO
December 2014
Maria Xuemei 3 years from her re-appointment on 30
SONG December 2014

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Michael 3 years from his appointment on 18
SU May 2016
Nathan

Resignad on 18 May 2016
Xin ZHANG

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

3 years from his re-appointment on 30
December 2014

Shou Yuan WU

Mark Gavin Lotter 3 years from his appointment on 17 February 2015

Bin Hui NI 3 years from his appointment on 31 March 2015
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Company’s Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which are required
(a) to notify the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provision of
the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EFEHE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BN BB BRB HRB Rs as

RFEANFET A= H, AARZERNERTH
NEAA A F R EAHE LW e R Bk (T
A MG ) SBXVER) ey AHBH B A s
, BEA () MRS BB XVELSE7 M A8/ M RIE
KT A EZHIARAT (TR ) 2
RRSE (AR SRR 25 S B 5 S I SCR AR
BIRPEA Z R BIRE) ; 50 (b) RIS KB IR pIH
352ftk, ZHAI NGB R 2 MRS B (o) MRER
RIZEM RIS 5.46 % 5,676 i i 2 M2 BRI R

TR T BeAR B B LAy Z 7

Number of shares in

Number of shares in which which interested under Total Approximate
interested(other than under physically settled equity number percentage of
Name Type of interests Capacity equity derivatives) derivatives(Note 4) of shares interest(%)
4 HERR AR oy FpA s 2 St IRBEEPA SLIRA MRy 4 HERARAY
CRARTA: T HERSN ) A T AR H5rH (%)
ZIBA I (Note 4)
William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 82,415,941 10,974,000 93,389,941 9.41
William Xia Guo A PEETEAA
William Xia GUO Corporate Interests of a controlled 336,128,873 — 336,128,873 33.86
William Xia Guo N { Cotporation iNote\:‘l)
SRR (TR
William Xia GUO Corporate Interests of a controlled 149,432,583 - 149,432,583 15.05
William Xia Guo N B Corp\orati(i{l‘('Nole\ ‘2)
SRR R (PTTE2)
William Xia GUO Corporate Interests of a controlled 91,915,181 91,915,181 9.26
William Xia Guo Al _ Corporation (Note 3)
AL PR 2 (E3)
l\ggria Xuemei SONG Personal Bqng:(icigl owner 636,500 1,636,000 2,272,500 0.23
R HaaA
Mr. Michael SU Personal Beneficial owner - 220,000 220,000 0.02
BB LA FE i
Shou Yuan Wu Personal Bepf&lciﬁl owner - 100,000 100,000 0.01
RAFTC i T e
Mark Gavin Lotter Personal Beneficial owner - 100,000 100.000
Mark Gavin Lotter [EPN jigatd 4 , 0.01
Bin Hui NI Personal Beneficial owner - 100,000 100,000
eI [N [IEEE 2N oot
Note 1:  Winsland Agents Limited is 100% directly held by Mr. William Xia GUO. BEL: 285018 Winsland Agents Limited [F7William Xia Guot:/E EI#HF 1
100951
Note 2:  The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings Inc., is 47.63 % directly W7E2: 2 Venturepharm Holdings Inc. 1 William Xia Guost4: EIPHFH
held by Mr. William Xia GUO and 49.00 % held by Mr. William Xia GUO 47.63%/HE, LUK HIWilliam Xia Guot L5 Winsland Agents Limited
through Winsland Agents Limited, his wholly and beneficially owned company ( TG IE LR 7, HGuo e BB 2 e ) #51549.00%
incorporated in British Virgin Islands. R,
Note 3:  The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is 100 % beneficially M3 A2 ?’/M/f@/b’ng]u Excel Assets Limited 25l Venturepharm Holdings
owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Inc. FLa D
Note 4: Various interests of the Directors pursuant to physically settled equity Bifit4: BT IR IR TAE T R T2 S i 255 BRI R -

derivatives are through share options granted.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2016, the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of

the Company’s issued share capital.
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EX 314

RS 25 B U EE IR IS XV 8 33640 2 MUE T A7 2 R
WERHUR, R A= —H, ARarlER
IO EEROR 2 s T, B AR A RIC AT RAS %
DAY

Approximate
percentage of
Capacit Number of shares interests
Name pacity o N
P B4 1 45 8 | HE 5 W01 23 L
Winsland Agents Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 336, 128, 873 33.86
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 2) Beneficial owner 149, 432, 583 15.05
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 3) Interests of controlled corporation 91, 915, 181 9.26
Bright Excel Assets Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 91, 915, 181 9.26
William Xia GUO (Notes 1, 2, 3,4) Beneficial owner and interests of 670, 866, 578 67.58
Controlled corporations
Winsland Agents Limited ( Fff731) T BEA A 336, 128, 873 33.86
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. ( fff = 2) TR E A 149, 432, 583 15.05
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. ( [ff H3) 7 4 1 RE 3 91, 915, 181 9.26
Bright Excel Assets Limited ( Fff 733 ) R N 91,915, 181 9.26
William Xia Guo (Bff 7E1. 2, 3/%4) T A AN Kz El kMg 670,866,578 67.58
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company AN T R0 A B 2 0 A

Note 1: Winsland Agents Limited is 100% directly held by Mr. William Xia GUO.
The shares include 77,500,000 shares granted under the 2014 Convertible
Notes. Noteholder has converted all Convertible Notes to ordinary share
of 77,500,000 shares on 31 December 2016.There will be no Convertible
Notes of the Company held by the Noteholder after the Conversion.

Note 2: Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is 47.63% directly held by Mr. William Xia
GUO and 49% held by Mr. William Xia GUO through Winsland Agents
Limited, his wholly and beneficially owned company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

Note 3: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is 100 %
beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note4: Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Holdings Inc., and
Winsland Agents Limited, the interests of 10,974,000 shares which are
granted to him under the Share Option Scheme are beneficially owned by
Mr. William Xia GUO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, there was no
other person who was recorded in the register of the Company as
having interests or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were required, pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to

be entered in the register referred to therein.

K7L Winsland Agents Limited H1William Xia GuosE4E B 15 1009 IR FHE JRAE
o CUTARIE2014 TR 5075 R 177,500,000/ - 742016512131 H,
Winsland Agents Limitedif 55 1] T (55551441 77,500,000 [ AR 2 71T

B TR AT G AAGAFIHEG R L Al H AT IR R

M7E2: Ven turepharm Holdings Inc. T William Xia Guosb4E B #4FH47.63%
JRARE, LAR i William Xia Guo B4 %1 Winsland Agent Limited (7T~ ra

JELHEIGEM T, 128542 Bt tEr) 15 649%IRFE -

BiIE3: 2t Bright Excel Assets Limited £ H/#EH Venturepharm Holdings

Inc B i tlEH -

Mf7F4:  BRiZ# Venturepharm Holdings Inc. fiWinsland Agents Limited#H.2 7

Sb, William Xia Guodti‘t: B as HER 10,974,000/ IR (7 rs, A2 RIEII
Wl B I IR REIITY 32 10,974,000/8 R 17 o

Br LSRR SN, R RN AEF T =, A
ARSI sk = S /G R BN AN s R /AT Pl P2 (i
B B A7 R A AR R 2 S U B R 1 25 XV IS 88 2 B 5 390 B
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DIRECTORS’
SIGNIFICANCE

INTERESTS 1IN CONTRACTS OF

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements

, the Company adopted a share option scheme. It awards the
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relevant eligible participants for their contribution in the Group’s A B B RE R S T — 2D RE T B S B R I T 28 s o
operation.
Name or Grant At 31 Exercise Date of Exercise
category At 1 Januay iy the | Exercised Expired in | Reclassified December price per grant of period of
Obf Ilzgll-li(fipa?ft, ‘ E2i6 N Year | in the Year| the Year | in the year ‘ 2()16 share(l—l]KffE) shar:: options share ()]?ili(lns
é;%fﬁ R=F—N AR | AR T E A | AT 2 FHRIREREA T
U —H—H R | el TH=—R | EFEKS) | B i3]
324,000 - - 324,000 - - 0.36 10-08-06 | 10-08-07%209-08-16
. 966,000 - - - - 966,000 0.625 10-05-07 | 10-05-08%209-05-17
William
XiaGuo | ¢s8000 | - - - - 858,000 0.435 07-04-09 | 07-04-10%06-04-19
9,150,000 | - - - - 9,150,000 0.45 30-06-15 | 30-06-162229-09-25
360,000 - - 360,000 - - 0.36 10-08-06 | 10-08-07%09-08-16
Other directors | 488,000 - - - (72,000) 416,000 0.625 10-05-07 | 10-05-08%09-05-17
Fifth ek
818,400 | - - - (98.400) 720,000 0.435 07-04-09 | 07-04-10%06-04-19
900,000 | - - - 120,000 1,020,000 0.45 30-06-15 | 30-06-16%29-09-25
244,800 - - 244,800 - - 0.36 10-08-06 | 10-08-07%209-08-16
Employees and |~ 496 109 | - - - 72,000 568,100 0.625 10-05-07 | 10-05-08%09-05-17
consultants
JEEMFEM | 2,654,400 | - - 412,000 | 98,400 2,340,800 0.435 07-04-09 | 07-04-10206-04-19
10,620,000 | - ~ 13370000 (120.000) |  7.130.000 0.45 30-06-15 | 30-06-16%29-09-25
Etjl 27,879,700 | - - 4,710,800 - 23,168,900
A
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or the substantial
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed shares during the year ended
31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on pages 19
to 29 of the annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL,SOCIALAND CORPORATERESPONSIBILITY

Environmental, social and governance report 2016 of the Company is
set out on pages 30 to 40 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation for independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that they are independent.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 47.36% of the Group’s sales. The largest customer
accounted for approximately 19.7% of the sales of the Group.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 68.51% of the Group’s cost of service. The largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 49.18% of the cost of the
service of the Group.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any interest in the five largest customers of
the Group.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

During the Year, staff cost, including Directors’ remuneration is
RMB9,827,000 (2015:
RMB8,676,000). The Group remunerates its employees based on

approximately approximately
their performance, and the prevailing market price. Other employee
benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance and medical
coverage, training programs and share option scheme.

The Company adopted the Share Option Schemes where share
options to subscribe for shares of the Company have be granted to the
eligible participants of the Group. 23,168,900 (2015:27,879,700)
share options have been owned by the eligible participants under the
Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by KLC
Kennic Lui & Co., Ltd (“KLC”). A resolution will be submitted to
the annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint KLC as
auditors of the Company.

Following the resignation of UHY Vocation HK CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company on 10 December 2015, KL.C was appointed
as the auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy. There were no
other change in auditor of the Company during the preceding three
years.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman
William Xia GUO

Beijing, the PRC, 24 March 2017

18 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.

EFEHE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

e BB BB R

HEFZANFETF A HIEFEE, AMEMETHRA
(RFLFE#EFM4E) £ NRKE9,827,00070 (& —TLIA 1%
o NR¥8,676,00070) « AR REEZFH . TIER
B M BTG E . Hofth B TARR LRGSR 4. AR
FERARBG RERI 2 MR

AT EBRAN I RER T I B A S a2 B
B TR AR N TR 2 BEIRRE . INARAEE R, AREEG
Yk 2 B HEA 23,168,900 (2015:27,879,700) B HIHE «

TS HER

A 2 ) R R A P i P 2 B 92 91 I R S
REZMESC, WA m S HO B T BUAT JBE SRR L2 B 77

22 G

A M B RERE R E T IR A IR A E . AR
AR AR E G TR A IR RIS A A W 2 R
EESINIIE T S LNl

KIEF WG FH A RN 7 RERE) R —F— T4
AT HEHER, PR EE R A A TR
AN FIRZHSAT LA DR R B i A 1 2 A 2 25k
O EIHT =R B A AR

REEEE

i

William Xia Guo

HEdEs, —FEFE=A



FREBRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2016, with the exception for the following deviations:
Under code provision A.2.1, the responsibilities between
chairman and chief executive officer should be divided. However
currently, the Company does not have Chief Executive Officer.
The day-to-day management of the Company's business is
handled by the executive directors, who take the responsibility to
run the Group's business and to implement the Group's strategy so
as to achieve the overall commercial objectives of the Company.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be
appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive Directors; however, they are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles
and the Code. Accordingly, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to deal with the requirement in respect
of the appointment terms of non-executive Directors as required
under the code provision.

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. In addition, under the code provision
E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the board should attend the
annual general meeting and he should also invite the chairmen of
the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as
appropriate) to attend. The annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) held on 30 June 2016, Mr. William Xia
Guo (chairman of the Board), did not attend the said AGM to
answer questions of the shareholders of the Company due to other
prior business engagements. However, Mr. William Xia Guo has
appointed the other attended Director Ms. Maria Xuemei Song as
their representative at the said meetings to answer questions of the
shareholders of the Company.

RULE 5.05(1) OF THE GEM LISTING RULES
Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules requires the board of

directors of a listed issuer must include at least three independent
non-executive Directors.
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After the appointment of Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter on 17 February
2015 and Dr Binhui NI on 31 March 2015 as the independent
Company has fulfilled the
requirement on the number of independent non-executive

non-executive Director, the

directors of the Company as required under Rule 5.05(1) of the
GEM Listing Rules.

RULE 5.28 OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules requires every listed issuer
must establish an audit committee comprising non-executive
directors only. The audit committee must comprise a minimum of
3 members.

After the appointment of Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter on 17 February
2015 and Dr. Binhui NI on 30 March 2015 as the member of the
audit committee, the Company has fulfilled the requirement on
the number of members of the audit committee as required under
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

SECURITIES

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company also had made specific
enquiry of all Directors and the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and its code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors during
this Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall governance structure of the Company is set out below:

Audit Committee
three members
FERAT
XA A=

Shou Yuan WU (Chairman)
ST (B

Bin Hui NI
TR

Mark Gavin Lotter
Mark Gavin Lotter

Note:

The Board members during this Year and up to the date of this

annual report are:

Executive Directors:

William Xia GUO (re-appointed on 30 December 2014)
Maria Xuemei SONG (re-appointed on 30 December 2014)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Michael SU (appointed on the 18 May 2016)
Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG (Resigned on 18 May 2016)

Independent Non-executive Director:
Shou Yuan Wu (re-appointed on 30 December 2014)

Mark Gavin Lotter (appointed on 17 February 2015)
Bin Hui NI (appointed on 31 March 2015)

iy
ST

The Board
e
Chairman appointed by the Board
Hid FE R
Two E)\(ecuEiye Directors
o FTH
One Nop—Exec/lltiye Director
L JEBU T R
Three lndependent Non-Executive Directors

bAAVAE | = oK o

Nomination Committee

four members

B A T T

Remuneration Committee
four members

RETET iz e
PUfL A WA=t
Bin Hui NI (Chairman) Mark Gavin Lotter (Chairman)
{EWIE () Mark Gavin Lotter (F=J#)
William Xia GUO William Xia GUO
William Xia Guo William Xia Guo
Shou Yuan WU Shou Yuan WU
RFFTC ST
Mark Gavin Lotter Bin Hui NI
Mark Gavin Lotter {58

BAHE -

PATHS:

FHTES:
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Biographical details of each Director is set out in the section
headed “Profile of directors and senior management” on pages 10
to 11 of this annual report.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) among members of the
Board.

The Board of Directors ("Board") of the Company is collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of the business
and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing
shareholders value.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval
and monitoring of the Group's overall strategies and policies;
approval of annual budgets and business plans; evaluating the
performance of the Group; and oversight of management. One of
the important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the
Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Group. All Directors have been consulted about any matters
proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of
Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receives adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner.

Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance to
give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Four regular Board
meetings at approximately quarterly intervals have been
scheduled for 2016. The Directors can attend meetings in persons
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association. Board
papers are circulated not less than seven days before the Board
meetings to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
matters to be raised at the Board meetings.

The Company Secretary shall attend all regular Board meetings to
advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance, accounting
and financial matters when necessary. Directors shall have full
access to information of the Group and are able to obtain
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by
the Directors. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
establishing the meeting agenda, and each Director may request
inclusion of items in the agenda. Minutes of the board meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
Directors.
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2016, the Board
held six meetings. The attendance records of the aforementioned
six Board meetings are set out below:
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HE TN EF A=t —HIEF A, wdgg s
i, B AUGERE e S ey T

Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year
FENERER ER TR R

Attendance no. Attendance rate

BB HiE 2R
Executive Director e R )
William Xia GUO William Xia Guo 5/6 83.33%
Maria Xuemei SONG REMF 6/6 100%
Non-executive Directors g ge
Mr. Michael SU ( appointed on the 18 May 2016)  ##3% (*20164F5 H 18 HHEZA(E) 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors btV AR | B K s o
Shou Yuan WU BT
Mark Gavin Lotter Mark Gavin Lotter 6/6 100%

5/6 83.33%

Bin Hui NI il 6/6 100%
INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE B AR TESE B

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors,
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company, based on such
confirmations, considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensures that all keys and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner. Currently, the Company does not have Chief
Executive Officer.

The day-to-day management of the Company's business is
handled by the executive directors, who take the responsibility to
run the Group's business and to implement the Group's strategy so
as to achieve the overall commercial objectives of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development during this Year. The Company has also
continuously updated Directors on the latest developments
regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

During this Year, the Directors participated in the continuous
professional developments in relation to regulatory update, the
duties and responsibility of the Directors and the business of the
Group in the following manners:

HEHZE

BT HIR S A6.50%, 2 HEHS TR R
, BERE NG RRRE, DA ORI B i sl A
B HE DT B S R R

BIREE & RS SillERs £ 3 R R /AP N - DT e
BERISER_E TR At ) B e Bl i e
e DRANE S 8~ ST R I R (S R L

AR, S R AT A2 B B SR S
B MO MR SE T 2 PR B IR

Attended Seminar

or Briefing/ Read Material
HeREOF el T/ Bkt

Directors

Executive Directors PATESE

William Xia Guo William Xia Guo \/
Maria Xuemei Song REH v/
Non-executive Director FEfTEE

Mr. Michael SU TR WV
(appointed on the 18 May 2016) (7A20164F5 H 18 HHEEZAT,)

Independent non-executive directors Br B TES v/
Shou Yuan Wu SRETD \/
Mark Gavin Lotter Mark Gavin Lotter VA
Binhui NI i

BOARD COMMITTEES EEZAY

The Board has established three committees, namely audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee,
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee™) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules 5.28 to 5.33. The primary duties of the
audit committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual reports,
interim reports and quarterly reports (b) to discuss and review
with the auditor of the Company on the scope and findings of the
audit; and (c) to supervise the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
provide advice and comments to the Board.

24 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.

FHFOR L =MEZEGTNEZLZET. RAZTAT
Pl 2 B 7 LA AR N ] 2 R e R

EUERE

AAFCHOIFRE RS, WEHAIZENR L% 528 2
5.33 MR TR AT W HE R I . A Z B ERGR
%y (a) FRAEEZEL. FELFERST (b) HAR
TR o R R e B AR T (o) BB AR
W B B R R T N N R A R A, TR
R R A



FREBRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The audit committee has three members comprising the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Dr. Shou Yuan Wu, Mr.
Mark Gavin Lotter and Dr. Binhui NI. The chairman of the audit
committee is Dr. Shou Yuan WU who possesses extensive
experience in finance and accounting. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

During the Year, the audit committee held four meetings The
attendance records of the aforementioned audit committee
meetings are set out below:
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Attendance of member at audit
committee meetings during the year

TR B 2 R

Attendance no. Attendance rate

HR R HmR
Members Jid=1
Shou Yuan WU RED 4/4 100%
Mark Gavin Lotter Mark Gavin Lotter 3/4 75%
Binhui NI MR 4/4 100%
NOMINATION COMMITTEE BAZEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (the
“NC”) with written terms of reference in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the NC are to review
the structure, size and composition (including but not limited to
the gender, skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The NC is chaired
by an independent non-executive Director. The NC comprises a
majority of independent non-executive Directors. During the
year, the members of the NC are as follows:

Executive Director
William Xia Guo

Independent non-executive directors

Shou Yuan Wu

Mark Gavin Lotter

Binhui NI

During the Year, the NC held two meetings. The attendance
records of the aforementioned nomination committee meetings
are set out below:

AAFECHOIIRAZ RS, B AISEN TR T
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JHe FP, REZEEZEAWT:
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William Xia Guo

B EHITES
LT
Mark Gavin Lotter

i e

TRIERBAEREY, $RAZ B G ST T e IRAZEREK
B RS B S aH T

Attendance no Attendance rate

Members BE HRE Hi
Shou Yuan WU REIL 2/2 100%
William Xia Guo William Xia Guo 2/2 100%
Mark Gavin Lotter Mark Gavin Lotter 172 50%
Binhui NI i 212 100%
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and
delegated certain duties under the Policy to the NC. The NC and
the Board had also reviewed on 10 May 2016 the structure of the
Board and is of the opinion the Board consisted of members with
different gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge, which
met the requirements under the terms of the Board Diversity
Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“RC”) according to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing
Rules with written terms of reference. Its primary duties are (a) to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management; (b) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and (c) to determine the remuneration
packages on

management.

individual executive Directors and senior

The RC is formed by an executive director and three independent
non-executive directors During this Year, the members of the RC
are as follows:

Executive Director

William Xia Guo

Independent non-executive directors

Shou Yuan Wu
Mark Gavin Lotter
Binhui NI

During this Year, meetings were held by the RC to discuss and
review the remuneration policies of the Company, to review and
make recommendations with respect to the remuneration of Board
approval by the Board and
recommendations with respect to the remuneration of the newly
appointed Directors during the year for approval by the Board.
The RC has adopted the operation model where it performs an
advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final

members  for to made

authority to approve the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management.
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Attendance of member at remuneration committee meeting during the
year as set out below:
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& B E B MR B e E R T

Attendance no. Attendance rate

Shou Yuan WU RETT 1/1 100%
William Xia Guo William Yia Guo 1 100%
Mark Gavin Lotter Mark Gavin Lotter 0 0
Binhui NI fie e 11 100%
DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THEIR EEABR&GHHERES ST

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure
the timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any matters uncertainly relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system. The Group is
committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks
associated with its business activities and has implemented a practical
and effective control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash management system
and periodic review of the Group’s operation and performance by the
Audit Committee and the Board. During the year, the Company
engaged an external independent consultant to conduct a review on
the internal control system of the Group. The risk management and internal
control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board to
ensure it is effective. The Board is satisfied that, based on information
furnished to it and on its own observations, the present risk management
and internal controls system of the Group are satisfactory. The Board
is of the view that the system of risk management and internal control
adopted for this Year is sound and effective. The Group does not have
an internal audit function and the Board is of the view that there is
currently no need for the Group to have this function.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
KLC about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 41 to 46 . During the year, auditor’s remuneration
for audit services was RMB?395,000. Save as disclosed above,
there was no other non-audit services assignment undertaken by
the external auditor during the Year.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for
distributing detailed documents to the Directors prior to the Board
meetings to ensure that the Directors are able to make informed
decisions regarding the matters discussed in the meetings. And all
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring that the Board procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

During this Year, the Company Secretary is Mr. Leung Kwok Fai
Ben Rich and a written confirmation had been received by the
Company from Mr. Leung Kwok Fai Ben Rich to confirm he took
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during this
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company according to the provisions as set out in the Articles
and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. A Special
General Meeting(“SGM”) can be convened by a written request
signed by shareholders of the Company, stating the objective of
the meeting and deposited at the Company’s head office at Unit B,
19/F, Times Media Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an
AGM or SGM include a written notice of those proposals being
submitted by shareholders, addressed to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s head office at Unit B, 19/F, Times Media
Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The detailed
procedures vary according to whether the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the
proposal relates to the election of a person other than a Director of
the Company as a director. The procedures for shareholders to
convene and put forward proposals at an AGM or SGM
(including election of a person other than a Director of the
Company as a director) are available on the Company’s website
or on request to the Company Secretary.
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PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING SHAREHOLDERS’
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at the
Company’s head office at Unit B, 19/F, Times Media Centre, 133
Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or send email to
ir@venturepharm.net..

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the AGM
or SGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports; (ii) the AGM or SGM providing a
forum for shareholders of the Company to raise comments and
exchanging views with the Board; (iii) key information of the
Group available on the website of the Company; (iv) the
Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
shareholders in respect of all share registration matters; and (v)
corporate information and the Bye-laws of the Company are made
available on the Company’s website.

A Shareholder’s Communication Policy was adopted by the
Board aiming at providing the shareholders and potential
investors with ready and timely access to balanced and
understandable information of the Company.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The
Board is committed to providing clear, detailed, timely manner
and on a regular basis information of the Group to shareholders
through the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports
and/or dispatching circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public.

Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s head office at Unit B, 19/F, Times Media Centre, 133
Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Report Summary
Reporting Period

This is the first annual Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (“ESG Report”) of China Health Group Inc. and its major
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which covers the period from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

REPORT COMPILATION BASIS

The report was prepared with reference to the ESG Reporting
Guide, as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX”).
REPORTING SCOPE

The report mainly focused on the key operation of the Group in

the Mainland China,
Services (VPS) and Post Marketing Research and Academic

including Contracted Clinical Research

Promotion Services (PMS) and other medical services. The data
are mainly from two major subsidiaries dt 5 4 G B8 H 1k
A BRATE] and W rg B SRR S BEA PR A 7.
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1. STAKEHOLDERS
COMMUNICATION

IDENTIFICATION AND

We believe that listening to the opinions of the stakeholders is
conducive to an objective and comprehensive evaluation of our
ESG performance. During the reporting period, the Group has
engaged with its stakeholders on an continuous basis via various
communication channel with the aims to align its business
strategies with the market and its stakeholders’ expectations and
concerns, and balance the interests of the Group and its
stakeholders, which will leads us to create further common value.

1.1 STAKEHOLDERS IDENTIFICATION

Based on the communications frequencies and experience with
relevant stakeholders, the Group has indentified seven different
groups of major stakeholders, which are government/regulatory
authorities, shareholders/investors, employees, clients, suppliers
industrial

(hospitals)/business associations and

community/public.

partners,

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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1.2 COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS 1.2 BRERS AER AR

e A R AR ] LR S A B A R,
AN RIE T, BT

The Group maintained communication with the stakeholders for a
range of matters through various communication channels as set

out in the table below:-

A S

Stakeholder Groups

B IRIE

Communication Channels

WEE5FXK
Major Expectations and Concerns

« BiFTE * EHLEE
Consultation paper Legal and regulatory compliance
* BRI * fChF #fs

Documents submission

Tax payment n timely manner

- EHigfaE ~ BRI E S FAE W
- Enquiry/Checkin Consultation in Public Policy F ormulation
B i R ¢ 7
Govemnment/
Regulatory Authorities * =W
Meeting
* SRS
Compliance report
* B5 SNART
Participation in conference/seminar
- IR ET A SRR * S5
Amnnual general meeting and notices Fnancial performance
« BIR - WSRO S A SAEIREE AR
Annual reports, financial statements and Business sustainability
announcements
- HEEHE
i3 o i1 * RIS Disclosure and transparency
Shareholders/ Corporate website
Investors
- WIETE
Wechat platform
« APPA 254
Bushess application platform
* REREMEY S A AR (TR 1)
Meetings and other meetings Business sustamabiity (job security)
- FNEE - THh 5 T E g E
Training courses Strive for self-improvement
BB * BEFeeolszAE
Performance appraisak Cultivate corporate culture
&5
AL
Employees AT ER * BREE/ A IHF RS
Employee gatherings Labor relations/labor rights and mterests
FAEHE EF R ZITTRRYILAT =
Labor contracts Equal career opportunities and diversity

* FREFLRER
Salaries and benefits
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1.2 COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS (CONT’D) 1.2 ERERSHHREEE (B

A AHCH i RE WES5HFR
Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels Major Expectations and Concerns
cBUETFEE FEEE
Wechat Platform Business development
*SHEFIHEIERR R * 25 - FORFIA
Emali and phone contacts Experience, technology and competent professionals
S EEEEE CAFAEHE
Daily operations/mteractions Fair and reasonable pricing
* B2 Pk FRERE
Corporate website Service quality
BRI - GAEE
Daily communication W in-wi co-operation
cSEBELFIRIE * NRTRE
Emails and phones Personnel stability
S B
P = D T a1
R & F EM i cwdenai CRELSES
2l o4 2 =%
kA o REREE & Semiars and Conferences Long-term bushess relationship
Suppliers (hospitak)
/Business Partners RS « AT SRS
Suppliers evahations Fair and reasonable pricing
*SCHEEE GIRT IR 7T
On-site viits Creativity and feasibiliy
- BT M2
Semiars Industrial development
§ *& EEE SIS EIFEERE
Annual meeting Business sustainab ility
Tl ZH R ) .Qt 8
Industrial §~ J . e
Associations ot T ¥ (REIAc W HOELIL
i e, Industry forums Increase employment
Exhbitions
- pEEED cHRES
Sponsorship of public welfare activities Community participation
- PIZEEE (FUEFE) - ttEeRE
Webmedia(wechat platform) Social integration
s TS * Bl A
B Semiars Career opportunities
Commumity/Public
* B

Community consultation

* EAE IR

Social training

T EESEESEBAERALE3I3
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2. ANALYSIS OF MATERIALITY AND RELEVANCY

The HKEx Guide encourages an issuer to identify and disclose
ESG information that is material and relevant to an issuer’s
business. Through our materiality assessment, the management
has decided that out of the 11 ESG Aspects suggested by the
Guide, the following 9 ESG Aspects are material and relevant to
the Group. The management policies and performance relating to
which are set out in the corresponding sections herein.

ESG il

ESG Subject Areas

Wi

Environmental

2. EENE R AHBE S

WSS TR 5 | S A BT AR 25 1 EE B N T 1Y
FRBATE, WA AR B A BREE A& MEIR A 3 SRS
JETAT PRt e B2 BRGS0 0 e i o
i, ERAHIESI B E R, DUT 9 R AR M A
BHR AL NAIRTT T A ERE BB A S AR
F I 2 B 3 % S R T R RN R B HE A B 485

ESG B

ESG Aspects

Al HEY) Emissions

A2 FE[EH Use of Resources

MR LEM

Employment and Labor Practices

Bl J&{H Employment

B2 {#f 5% % Health and Safety

B3 % k3%l Development and Training

B4 Z5 T 4] Labor Standards

=gl

Operating Practices

B6 BT Product Responsibility

B7 K75 Anti-corruption

1

Social
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3. ENVIRONMENT
3.1 EMISSIONS

The Group is committed to operating in compliance with
applicable environmental laws and regulations in all material
respects and protecting the environment by minimising the
negative impact of the Group’s existing business activities on the

environment.

The Group continuously performs the separate collection method
on the daily domestic garbage to ensure reuse of the recyclable
waste, for example: plastic bags, plastic lunch boxes, paper and so
on. The Group chooses cups or glasses instead of paper cups for

the guests to minimise waste and be more environmental-friendly.

The Green House Gas (“GHG”) emission from the Group is
mainly generated from its purchased electricity consumed by the
daily operation. To reduce the amount of carbon emission, the
Group has implemented several practical measures on saving
energy as further described in the next section “Use of

Resources”.

Note: The Group’s GHG emissions were classified into 3 scopes.
The relevant activities were as below:

* Scope 1 = GHG Emissions refer to direct emissions from the
fuel used by a private car owned by the Group for
business purposes;

* Scope 2~ Emissions refer to energy indirect emissions. It is
resulted from electricity purchased from energy
supply companies used in our business operations;
and

* Scope 3 — Emissions refer to other indirect emissions (optional
for reporting purposes). Itis from the usage of office

paper.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.2 USE OF RESOURCES

The Group’s operation is mainly office-based and we were
committed to minimizing the impact of our businesses on the
environment by adopting eco-friendly measures in the office. In
terms of energy saving measures, there were a number of good
practices as follows.

* Conference calls instead of face-to-face meetings were
arranged where possible.

* Staff is reminded to switch off lights and air-conditioning in
the meeting room when it was not in use.

* The room temperature was maintained at 25 degrees Celsius
in the summer and 18 degrees Celsius in the winter in order to
save energy.

* We have provided water supply equipment in the office for
employees and visitors and we were encouraged to use
reusable cups to reduce the use of plastic bottles.

* We were encouraged to use emails and online signature
system for document review, signing and communication
where possible, in order to reduce copying and the use of
papers.

4. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

The Group viewed each and every employee as the most valuable
resources and wealth, respected and protected their legitimate
rights and interests, paid close attentions to their health and safety,
valued talent training, strived to build a tailor-made career paths
and rapid development platform, and committed to achieve the
common growth.

36 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.
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4.1 EQUAL CAREER OPPORTUNITIES AND DIVERSITY

The Group valued equality and diversity in our workforce, we
have introduced various talents through campus recruitment,
social recruitment (including website recruitment and internal
referral), and they were recruited according to their ability and
attitude, regardless of their gender, race and age.

4.2 ATTENTION
SAFETY

TO EMPLOYEES’ HEALTH AND

Employees’ health and safety are paramount to the Group. The
Group has continued to organize a range of leisure, recreational
and sporting programs to build and promote a healthy and
work-life balance environment to the workforce. In 2016, the
Group has provided various activities to our employees,
including Birthday parties, Ledongli walk, Spring outing,
New Year party and medical checkup for the employees.

4.3 TRAINING AND GROWTH PLATFORM

The Group valued training and development since its
commencement, because it helped to increase efficiency, enhance
employees commitment, improve team communication and boost
employees morale, and thus foster the innovation and growth of

the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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4.3.1 CAREER DEVELOPMENT

The Group has established nine grading management system to
ensure that the employees can choose their career path and
develop job-related professional skills. The following diagram set
out the career development paths:

RiE, HEREIA#E2016

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2016

431 BERE

AEEEEES VI A RIS R, WO BT LLE I
TR BE SR B SRR T TAEARB R ERE, AR RA Yk
SERERHACIN T -

9a HIFHUTE
CEO
BHER -
Chief Executive Offer ?IE it Z i EE
BlIEHR CFO, CO0
Deputy Chief
Executive Offer O KA EE « A
R AR
CTO CHO CMO
%
EEE
Assistant Supervisor
LAl
Staff
LA —HRZEA EHZEA EEEE e
Staff Front Manager Manager Management of Business Senior Management
Division
4.3.2 TRAINING 432 EEFH

Training was an important way to improve the overall quality and
provide comprehensive development of the employees. The
Group has established a multi-level training system. The Group
endeavored to create internal and external training opportunities
for our employees, so as to enhance their knowledge, job skills,
capabilities and performance. In the reporting period, our training
mainly including orientation training for new employees, training
of professional skills, training of new general knowledge, job
rotation and outdoor development activities.
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4.4 GUARANTEEING LEGITIMATE RIGHTS

The Group has strictly observed the provisions in the national
labor laws and regulations, continued to optimize the labor
management system, established a fair and legal employment
environment, valued protection of legitimate rights and interests
of women and the disabled, implements equal pay for equal work,
avoided discrimination and unfair treatment, and stood firm
against employment of child and forced labor. In 2016, the Group
has not violated any of the relevant national labor laws and
regulations and did not employ child and forced labor force.

The Group has established and optimized a welfare system in line
with the enterprise development and employees’ growth, built a
remuneration management system and various incentive
systems(including share option incentives), and continuously

improved the remuneration scheme.

Furthermore, in accordance with the national regulations, it has
contributed social insurance and provident fund for employees,
provided various benefits such as subsidies on holidays and
festivals, home leaves, meal allowance, and subsidies for mobile
phone  bill for employees, and also  provided
accommodation/housing subsidies for Non-Beijing Resident
Graduates and commercial insurance and car loans for
outstanding employees, etc. truly enabling employees to enjoy at

work and in turn to improve the overall productivity.
5. OPERATING PRACTICES
5.1 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The office-based operation of the Group was not considered to
have significant environmental and social risks of supply chain.

5.2 PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has highly prioritized the business integrity and
services standards to promote the long-term best interests to all of
its shareholders and stakeholders. During the reporting period, the
Group didn’t receive any complaint in relation to violations of
relevant laws and regulations. The Group will continue to fully
comply with relevant governmental and regulatory laws, rules,
codes and regulations.

5.3 ANTI-CORRUPTION
During the reporting period, there was no legal case relating to

bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering brought against
the Group and its employees.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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6. SOCIAL
6.1 PROMOTING SOCIAL WELLBEING

The Group adhered to the belief “taking from the society, giving
back to the society”. It has actively engaged in a wide range of
social welfare and charitable activities with its expertise and
resources, and strived to achieve win-win outcomes with its
stakeholders.

6.2 SUMMARY OF PROMOTING SOCIAL WELLBEING
ACTIVITIES

In the reporting period, the major social welfare and charitable
activities participated in by our staff are summarized as follows:

World No Tobacco Day
“Enjoying a Healthy Life”

— Organised a range of anti-smoking
campaigns and donations.

Global Day for ALS
“Love from Wanquan, Warm to ALS Patients” -organised a range
of disease awareness campaigns and donations.

World Allergy Day
“Bye Bye Allergy”-organised a range of disease awareness
campaigns, volunteer medical consultations and donations.

World Suicide Prevention Day

“Let Us Smile” -organised a range of disease awareness
campaigns, mental health educations and go together with
Wanquan activities.

World Alzheimer's Day
“Love Memory”
consultations and disease awareness campaigns on caring for the

-organised a range of volunteer medical
elderly.
World Mental Health Day

“Mental Health and Social Harmony"
disease awareness educations and go together with Wanquan

-organised a range of
activities.
World Aids Day

“No I, but love”-organised a range of disease awareness
campaigns.
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KIC

EREEHHEBRAERLA
KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Independent auditor's report
To the shareholders of China Health Group Inc
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Health Group Inc (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 107, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independence of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2(b)(ii)
to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets and total
assets by approximately RMB28,937,000 and RMB25,166,000,
respectively, as of 31 December 2016. These conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in note 2 (b)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.Notwithstanding the above,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on the
Group's ability to generate positive cashflows from new contracts
and enforcing stringent cost measures.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were most significant in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition from services provided

We identified revenue recognition from services provided as a
key audit matter as revenue recognised is quantitatively
significant to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and material revenue transactions may
occur close to the end of the reporting period.

Revenues from contracted clinical research services are
recognised over the fixed terms of the contracts or, where
appropriate, as the related costs are incurred. Milestone payments
in  connection  with development  or
commercialisation agreements are recognised when they are

research  and

earned in accordance with the applicable performance

requirements and contractual terms.

Payments received that are related to future performance are
deferred and recorded as revenues as they are earned over the
specified future performance periods.

Revenue from post marketing research and academic promotion
services is recognised when the relevant services are rendered and
the respective amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
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Our audit procedures in respect of revenue recognition included
the following:

+ Obtained a list of receipts in advance as at 31 December 2016
and a list of revenue recognised during the year ended 31
December 2016;

= Reviewed the status of projects as of 31 December 2016 on a
sample basis to ensure monies received had been properly
recorded either as receipts in advance or revenue based on the
status of the respective projects; and

+ Arranged audit confirmations on a sample basis to confirm the
service income during the year and receipts in advance balance
as of 31 December 2016.

Completeness and accuracy of provision for litigation
claims

We identified the completeness and accuracy of the provision for
litigation claims as a key audit matter because the Group has
incurred certain commercial and labour disputes over the years
and recognises the need of a substantial provision of amount for
litigation claims.

Our audit procedures to check the completeness and accuracy of
the provision for litigation claims included the following:

= Obtained a detailed summary of legal cases within the Group
and enquired with the legal department on the status of each
case as of 31 December 2016;

« Performed search on the websites of different local courts to
ensure the detailed summary of legal cases covered all legal
cases involved by the Group;

= For legal cases with settlement statements issued by the

respective courts, obtained the settlement statements and
ensured proper provision had been made in accordance
therewith; and

= For open legal cases, obtained legal opinions on the possible
penalty to be incurred from the Group’s legal department and
ensured adequate but not excessive provisions were made.
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusions thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we concluded that there are
any material misstatements of this other information, we are required
to report such facts. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with
governance for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRS:s issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, or if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings,

including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence and, where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor's report is Tang Wai Yau.

KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Tang Wai Yau

Practising Certificate No.: P05737

Hong Kong,

24 March 2017
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Revenue

N

Other income

HAN

Cost of services

ks AR
Staff costs
BITRA
Administrative expenses
fTBcE
Impairment losses on work-in-progress
TEAE IR
Finance costs
BN G%N
Loss on revaluation of derivative financial liabilities
ARG R 1R
Profit/(loss) before taxation
IR R/ (B 1R)
Income tax
i
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
A P4 [T /s 1R A A
Attributable to:
IS
Equity shareholders of the Company
PN ESEDN
Non-controlling interests
R o
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
AR B [T /O 1R A A
Earnings/(loss) per share
TR R/ (B 1R)
Basic
B YN
Diluted
i

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial statements.

525 107TH 2 Sy SRR ORI ke > — 3y

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE_F-AFET-HA=1+—HiLFE

2016 2015
RN “F I
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bif=E AT ARHETTT
4 20,241 20,497
5 220 1,876
(3,357) (4,980)
6(b) (9,827) (8,676)
(4,392) (5,379)
14 - (3,166)
6(a) (800) (817)
22 - (2,731)
6 2,085 (3,376)
7 42 (111)
2,127 (3,487)
2,127 (3,353)
- (134)
2,127 (3,487)
10(a) 0.23 cents (0.37 cents)
10(b) 0.23 cents (0.37 cents)
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At 31 December 2016
mrZH=1+—H
2016 2015
RN ZE AR
Notes RMB’000  RMB’000
Pt ARBTIL  AR¥TIC
Non-current assets IEREEE
Property, plant and equipment YIS . R Mt 11 3,771 4,803
New drug technologies AR 12 - -
3,771 4,803
Current assets REEE
Work-in-progress TEEE N, 14 2,086 2,673
Trade and bills receivable TSR R M S 4 15 551 3,368
Trade deposits paid TN SEH 16 3,100 -
Prepayments and other receivables TN I ARG 17 1,584 1,332
Cash and cash equivalents Bl MBS HEHE 18(a) 1,753 6,775
9,074 14,148
Current liabilities wEAE
Trade payables, other payables and accrued charges  JER IR HABMER HO ERTE ] 19 23,311 22,550
Receipts in advance THIGK 20 4,855 24215
Loans from related companies T (K 21 8,321 -
Convertible notes CiEidiideess 22 - 5,779
Derivative financial liabilities agasex =N 22 - 4,447
Bank borrowings HITER 23 1,500 1,500
Income taxes payable JEEAF BRI 24 24 128
38,011 58,619
Net current liabilities ek ig=Li=i
(28,937) (44.471)
Net liabilities BHE

(25,166) (39,668)

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016
B =H="1—H
2016 2015
TR NE ZFE LS
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mat  ANRBETIT AR¥TIC
Capital and reserves VA B gttt
Share capital J2¥N 25 88,673 81,699
Reserves il 25(c) (113,839) (121,367)
(25,166) (39,668)
Deficiency in assets attributable to equity A vi) BRI AT N AR A 4
shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests AR - -
Deficit of shareholders’funds B (25, 166) (39,668)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 107 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March

2017 and are signed on its behalf by:
SEATH 10T H Z AR B IR =5 = H = TP H A G e s g Aol i LU 2 R

William Xia GUO Maria Xuemei SONG
William Xia Guo REHEL
Director Director
g e

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial statements.

SE52 5107 H 2 K3 M AR E A B iR 2 — Ay

T EBESEEBAERALSF4L9



2016EERE

ANNUAL REPORT

HE_E—AE+"A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

AN TIHER NG
Statutory
Share- enterprise Non—
Share Based payment Special Capital ~ Statutory  expansion Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve fund losses Total interests Total
g FRAERE  RERIRERE WARKME el deb¥ #RER it R 5t
S BRES
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NI ST ARHTE ARETE ARETE AREFT AREFc ARBTT ARETT ARWTCT AR
Balance at 1 CE-HAE 81,699 4,285 6,039 2,254 3,821 6,986 (142,740) (37,656) 134 (37,522)
January 2015 —HA—H
Change in equity for 2015 —&—HE 2 5T
Loss for the year AAEER (3,353) (3,353) (134) (3,487)
Total comprehensive loss Al RAE (3,353) (3,353) (134) (3,487)
Equity settled share DU B2 1,341 1,341 1,341
-based transactions HRZZ 5
Balance at 31 TE-FETTA 81,699 5606 6,039 2054 381 6986 (146,093) (39,668) (39,668)
December 2015 ZSt-HRCF
and at 1 January 2016 —~E—A—H
Change in equity for 2016 —F—7E 2 fEiiEH)
Profit for the year HAEEF 2127 217 2127
Total comprehensive ATl AR 2,127 2,127 2,127
income
Conversion of convertible TR 6974 3977 10951 10,951
notes ilies
Equity settled share DB G st 3 st e 1,424 1424 1,424
-based transactions 255
Balance at 31 “EF-NETA 88,673 7,050 6,039 6,231 3,821 6,986 (143,966) (25,166) (25,166)
December 2016 =t—H

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities

Investing activities
Interest received

Net cash generated from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Loans from related companies

Net cash generated from /(used in) financing activities

Net(decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

REEGIRERESH

S S GV e
ENFLE

[R5 G

RETEE (TR S B &

BE BB S
EUCFLE

BETEEREREEHE
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EDEARIEEN
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2016 EHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

Year ended 31 December 2016

BE_F—NF+_HA=1T—HILFEE

2016 2015

BN F L
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARETFRE ARETIC

18(b) (6,756) 3,529
(75) (132)
(62) (7)

(6,893) 3,390
9 7

9 7
1,500 1,500
(1,500) (2,000)
1,862 -
1,862 (500)
(5,022) 2,897
6,775 3,878
1,753 6,775

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial statements.
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HIBBRRME
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
May 2002 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre,
4th Floor, PO Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is Building
Al Venturepharma Center, No. 11 of West Third Ring North
Road, Haidian District, Beijing, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), 100089. The Company has had its shares
listed on The Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10 July 2003.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand. RMB is
the functional currency of the Company and is also the
functional currency for the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant

accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(i) Measurement basis, judgements, estimates and
assumptions

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that derivative financial liabilities are
stated at their fair values as explained in note 2(e) to
the accounting policies.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgments about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources.  Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effects on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

(i) Going Concern

As at 31 December 2016, the Group‘s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets and total assets
by  approximately = RMB28,937,000  (2015:
RMB44,471,000) and RMB25,166,000 (2015:
RMB39,668,000), respectively. These conditions,
along with other matters set forth in the consolidated
financial statements, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainly that may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

2016 E#E

ANNUAL REPORT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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BERE M E
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors believe that the Group will be able to meet
its financial obligations in full as and when they fall due
for the foreseeable future since the directors of the
Company believe that the Group will generate positive
cash flows in the next twelve months by receiving cash
from new contracts and enforcing stringent cost
measures. Accordingly, the financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
carrying amounts and reclassification of assets and
liabilities that might be necessary should the Group be

unable to continue as a going concern.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRS:s that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have had
a material effect on how the Group’s result and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group control an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no

evidence of impairment.
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Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of

the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity

shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(i)), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group

that is classified as held for sale).
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(e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
of fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(i)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over

their estimated useful lives as follows:

BB P E
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Leasehold improvements 5 years FHEY2ESE 54
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years T S RPN 2w 5—104
Motor vehicles 5 years VEHL 5%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is

depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if

any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in

profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their

estimated useful lives are as follows:
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Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.

(h)Lease assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting period covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
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(i) Impairment of assets

(M) Impairment of trade and other receivables

For trade and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— work-in-progress; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amounts

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. Impairment losses in respect
of goodwill are not reversed.

Reversal of an impairment loss is limited to an
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment recognition

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see notes 2(i)(i) and (ii))

() Work-in-progress

Costs incurred on development projects with an intention
of outright sale as technology transfer are recognised as
work-in-progress when it is probable that the project will
be a success considering its commercial and technological
feasibility, and only if the cost can be measured reliably.
Work-in-progress is recognised as cost of sales in
accordance with the performance requirements and
contractual terms as stated in the contracts.

Work-in-progress is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of work-in-progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct cost and related
production overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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k)

®

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any allowances for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effects of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance

for any impairments for doubtful debts.
Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at

attributable
Subsequent to initial recognition,

fair value less transaction  costs.
interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(m) Trade and other payables

(n)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Convertible notes which do not contain an equity
component

At initial recognition, the derivative component of
convertible notes is measured at fair value and
presented as part of derivative financial instruments (see
note 2(e)). Any excess of proceeds over the amount
initially recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of convertible notes are
allocated to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds. The portion of
the transaction costs relating to the liability component
is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

&)
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(0)

(p)

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured
in accordance with note 2(e). The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The interest expense
recognised in profit or loss on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method.

If notes are converted, the carrying amounts of the
derivative and liability components are transferred to
share capital and capital reserve as consideration for the
shares issued. If notes are redeemed, any difference
between the amount paid and the carrying amounts of
both components is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

() Snort term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(1) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as
corresponding increase in the share-based payment
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at

an employee cost with a

the grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon
Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

which the options were granted.
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During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged / credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve. On the vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share-based
payment reserve until either the options are
exercised (when they are included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or
the options expire (when it is released directly to
retained profits or losses).

(iii) Contribution to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans

The Group’s entities in Mainland China participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by relevant government authorities for its
employees in Mainland China and contribute to
these plans based on certain percentage of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly basis, up to
a maximum fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by
the relevant government authorities. The
government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing
and future retired employees under these plans.

(q) Income Taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences, respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in a period into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

In the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

In the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

2016 E#E

ANNUAL REPORT
BE_E—A"E+_"_A=+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

BT IEAS ok MO A B VRS Bk LA M L AR Bl & 7 B 42
B, T HATARE . BB AE B A A
LB &Ik T S A BT RER LLBUYI AT I R B
WRHAM, WEAFS LTRSS, A
FLAZY RIS B SR SE B 4 £ -

- BL BT o AT, AR R A
BRGSO A W 2 R IR IR AL
o

IR AE R RN o, RS A
WAZE B[] —F e B ool LA HH— S P
1BHLA R :

[ R 5K
AR EATT S . % B e TH I A

AR SE R T AR T 2 (R SO S B TR 2 T LA
[l 2 AR AR, 1% B e A B BU R

B MAH HBUN RS R, s a8 i 2 [
IERTER U=

(r) #f MR

fis A A SR Il B 8 A 2 RIS TR A E AT
, JEATRZ SR B R s, AT
TSR AN, R R R B e A E 2 HAt A
feifERd st . R BRI MIEEE R, HITHEE
FTEER BSC 2 BUERT R -

fis A AR 2 SN T RETEIRAIR, BRI AT A
SREH TR Z AT, SR BT SR A
fi, (EBOMAS A st th 2 w] REVE I RERIBR S 78
HUP R ol 22 SR AR A2 A5 3 A RE R A A A B
BT, I RERERAM, ERuEH
REPF 2 2 3 2 AT REPE VR BR A b

TEESREBAERALSE65




2016 E#lE

ANNUAL REPORT
HE_E—AE+"A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

BT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(s) Revenue recognition () WA THERR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Revenues from contracted clinical research services

Revenues from contracted clinical research services
are recognised over the fixed terms of the contracts
or, where appropriate, as the related costs are incurred.
Milestone payments in connection with research
and development or commercialisation agreements
are recognised when they are earned in accordance
with the applicable performance requirements and
contractual terms.

Payments received that are related to future
performance are deferred and recorded as revenues
as they are earned over the specified future
performance periods.

(i) Other service income

Service income is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered and the respective amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

(iii) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they
become receivable.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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(t) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair values were measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(u) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(v) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
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Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(w) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’ s family,

is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i1) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i1i) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’ s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary,

and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i1) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(i11) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post—employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group” s parent.
Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment, Operating segments
which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

The Group operates in a single segment and no
segmental analysis is presented.

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumption about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives for its property, plant and equipment. These
estimates are based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and function. They could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Depreciation charges will be reassessed where useful live
are different from the previous estimations, or they will
write-off or write-down obsolete assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Impairment of receivables

The Group’s management determines the provisions for
impairments of trade and other receivables. Such
estimates are based on the collectability of trade and other
receivables. Provisions for impairment are applied to
trade and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgments and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of receivables
and doubtful debt expense in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to
determine when investments in subsidiaries are impaired.
This determination requires significant judgments. In
making these judgments, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair
values of investments are less than cost; and the financial
health and near-term business outlook of an investee,
including factors such as industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and operational and
financing cash flow.

Provision for legal claims

The Group reviews the status of all open legal claims at
the end of the reporting period and ascertains the
probability and amount of compensation payable for each
legal claim to determine the provision for legal claims.
However, the actual results of each legal claim may be
different from the estimation and profit or loss could be
affected by differences in this estimation.
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Net realisable value of work-in-progress

The Group’s management determines the net realisable
value of work-in-progress. The determination requires
judgments of the accomplishment of certain stages of
milestones during the process of new drugs development.
Where the actual outcomes or expectations in future are
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of work-in-progress and
provisions for charges/write-backs in the period such
estimates change.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts are
determined based on fair values less costs to sell
calculations or market valuations. These calculations
require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgments are required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions in the cash flow
projections could affect the net present values used in
the impairment tests and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in
the PRC. The determination of the provision for
income taxes involves significant judgments as there
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amount
that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the current income tax provision and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.
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Recognition of deferred income tax assets depends on
management’s expectation of future taxable profits that
will be available against which the deferred income tax
assets can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Group provides pharmaceutical
development and product commercialisation services.
These services are subject to similar business risks, and
resources are allocated based on what is beneficial to the
Group in enhancing the value as a whole rather than on
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ekt Nit, EHERARE B A
any specific unit.  The Group’s chief operating » BB\E, AR RIS
decision-maker considers that the performance
assessment of the Group should be based on the
profit/(loss) before taxation of the Group as a whole.
Therefore, management considers there to be only one

operating segment under the requirements of HKFRS 8.

Breakdown of revenue from services is as follows: NG L E
2016 2015
RN R4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIT NRWTIT
Contracted clinical research services (VPS) B HIER R TR IREW 12,279 12,275
Post marketing research and academic R R 5T R 2 5,473 5,420
promotion services (PMS) Tt B IR B
Other medical services HoAth S EE RN 2,489 2,802
20,241 20,497

Other medical services included registration, application
and testing services.

FMb BRI WAL S e, AR RO

The Group primarily operates in the PRC and its IR AR A K A 2E T P A A g B AR A
P ACURTA PR B o AFBR A BE2E B & P 2 s AR

FEAAB R 100 LA E2Z RSN

revenues are all derived in the PRC for both years.

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of total sales of the Group are as follows:

2016 2015

e A S “E—-AF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREETIT N

Customer A (1) HFAQL) 3,387 4,926

(1)The above customer received post marketing research and () BRI IR FE IR
academic promotion services (PMS) .
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awards granted by government authorities.

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging:
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5. OTHER INCOME 5. HAKA
2016 2015
RN “E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT AR#ETIC
Compensation income iR ULON 19 28
Government grants (note) BOMRRL (FHE) 87 668
Interest income FLEHA 9 7
Overprovision of litigation claims in prior year LTI R A P o (1 1 346
Overprovision of staff costs in prior year PARTAR BRI B TRiAR 4 332
Overprovision of other expenses in prior year AR 47 R R A Y HoAth 22 80 367
Reversal of impairment losses on other receivables — HAth FEISCGEIRAE R S 135 1] - 89
Other HoAly 20 39
220 1, 876
Note: BT
The above government grants during the years ended 31 HE - FE Nttt A=t N E—RE A=
December 2016 and 2015 represented unconditional cash - H 1E2E BN A A G R BOM R S i B

6. RIRRTRE R/ (B51R)
BRAT T A)/ (EHR) B 40BR 7 (FEA) -

2016 2015
ZE ZER—TAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR®TT AT T
(a) Finance costs () B AR
Interest on: FE S H:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within TLAE AT AR E R R T
one year R 2, 75 132
Convertible bonds TGRS S 725 635
Total interest expense on financial liabilities B | VA I E b =R N = B ]
not at fair value through profit or loss SRl B EIRERE S H 800 817
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) b) EIJJ}QA(@,HE%M@E)
Salaries, bonuses and awards e 1T 7,110 6, 484
Contributions to defined contribution retirement FUEMGHGR IR
plans itk 1,187 851
Share-based payments VIR AR 2o i 2 A3 1,424 1,341
Other benefits HAbwF) 106 -
9, 827 8,676
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2016 2015

e Sy 2 TE—RAE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARMEFIT

(c) Other items (o) HAthIHH
Auditors’ remuneration 2 G R 424 490
Litigation claims e 296 1,722
Depreciation g 1,032 1, 207
Operating lease charges in respect of rented premises L PIZERIAE AL &2 H 24 179
7. INCOME TAX 7. BEEREHAALERZRZ ER

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income represents:

(a) KRG H 8 M HA AR TR 2 56 2 FEIEAN T -

2016 2015

ZEFRE —F A

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARHEETIT

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax AT - e A\ [N B SE S i

Provision for the year SE A - 111
Overprovision in prior year DARITAF B R (42) -
(42) 111

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits generated in Hong
Kong for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year
according to the relevant laws and regulations. The
applicable income tax rate ranges from 15% to 25% as at
31 December 2016 (2015: 15% to 25%).
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(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b)BRTE S HH B s e R/ (518 AR A w2 SR -
profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

2016 2015

ZEFAE RN

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETI ANRHEETIT
Profit/(loss) before taxation KRR R (B TE) 2, 085 (3, 376)

Notional tax charge/(credit) on profit/(loss) before HAHRRE R EEA G

taxation calculated at the applicable tax rate of 25% B R BR B AT (1R 2 SR 522 (844)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised AEIERIEER AR R 2 4,318 2, 696
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not recognised I RERT AR R R R 2 - (1, 290)
Tax effect of deferred tax not recognised F O ERT AR 2 AR 2 F s s 2 (4, 840) (451)
Overprovided in prior year G (42) -
(42) 111
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8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors” emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information About Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

B REME
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8. EH %

TRIETTHE «CATMEG] H383MF S «AT] (P WF R
Kl FE SRR < R AT AR T

Salaries, allowances and

Directors’ fees benefits in kind
G Hrde . USR]
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZENE 2B AR TERONE TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AW ARMETIC ARHETIL AR¥TIC

Contributions to

defined contribution
retirement plans Share based payments Total
ARpREHIIEK VA3 FSLERE 2 A 30 4t

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

SEOSNE T TEANE TEAE TRNE TERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NRATE ARETE  ARBTRE ARETE  ARETL ARETL

Executive directors

LGES

Mr. William Xia GUO

97 1,130 1,130

- - 643 546 1,773 1,676

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG

Ry 328 283

91 85 35 30 454 398

Non-executive directors

R GES

Mr. Michael Su
(Appointed on 18 May 2016)

(A20164F5 H 18 HAENE)

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG
(Resigned on 18 May 2016)

RN
(%20164F5 H 18 H BHT)

Independent non-executive directors

BT AR T

Dr. Shou Yuan WU

e 50 50 - -

Dr. Bing Hui NI
(Appointed on 31 March 2015)

i
(74201543 7 31 HERHE)

Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter
(Appointed on 17 February 2015)

Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter
(201552 H 17 HAERE)

Mr. Paul CONTOMICH-ALOS
(Resigned on 21 January 2015)

Mr. Paul CONTOMICH-ALOS
(2201551 H 21 HEHT)

50 50 1,458 1,413

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). During
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
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9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five (2015: five) individuals with the highest
two (2015:
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the

emoluments, two) are directors whose

emoluments in respect of the remaining three (2015: three)
individual are as follows:
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sxEME AL

A m e Ld, ma (CF-TE: WA %
TR, WEZMERMITEsS . k=4 (C“F 5
o =4) S A L2 e

2016 2015

e e

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREETIT NRHETIC
Salaries and allowances i M AR 582 418
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plan IR 73 68
Share based payments — Note 28 VAR B i 2 AR -Bf 28 24 15
679 501

The emoluments of each of the individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the band of RMBS$ nil to
RMB$1,000,000 in both years.

10. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(@) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB2,127,000
(2015: loss of RMB3,353,000 and the weighted
average of 915,484,000 ordinary (2015:
915,272,000 issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

shares
shares) in

1. Weighted average number of ordinary shares

TERNER - TAERE S N2 AT AR
HoTn 2 A& 1,000,0007T

10. SRR (B1R)
() FEARELAEF) (5 1E)
EEEEAR RN (518) S IR IR AL w I RE R A | 4
RN RHE2,127,0000C (& T4 HHE AR
3,353,0007C) A AF N B AT 10 B 2 A ST 1 B8

915,484,000 HiH (T —FH 4 915,272,000i%
W) wME, HEEMT

1. i e RS- EBE

2016 2015

RN TR

RMB’000 RMB’000

AT AR#TI
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January H—H—HZ B8 Tk 915, 272 915, 272
Effect of convertible notes converted TR R TR R 212 -
Issued ordinary shares at 31 December I Y B e = 5 Y e 11 R S 3 915, 484 915, 272
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(b) Diluted earnings / ( loss) per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss)

per share amounts presented for the years ended 31

December 2016 and 2015 in respect of a dilution as the

convertible notes and outstanding share options set out in

note 22 and note 28, respectively, had an anti-dilutive

effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts

presented.

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(b) f R (B51R)/ B 7

HE %

=
B,

B E M E
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REVANG By p & By ml & BN QI Sl F1EG Sy
H = —H 1B 47 2 G R e 48 B A I S AN 48
AL, RIAAT (2 n] s (5 5 & R S A RE A R i

11. W% BB Mt

Leasehold  Machinery and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
Y= i S & ] ¥ &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NRHETIC ARMTIE ARWBTIT AR¥ETIT
Cost: AR
At 1 January 2015, RE IR H - H
31 December 2015, —FhEF A=A
1 January 2016 and TER—ANF—H—HEK
31 December 2016 ZERNEATZH=+—H, 5,672 18,926 645 25,243
Accumulated depreciation HFHE:
At 1 January 2015 P E—HE—H—H 5,637 13,213 383 19,233
Charge for the year NCDIE: 2o )NE 1 1,138 58 1,207
At 31 December 2015 IS Sl G By VS [y ] &1
and 1 January 2016 N = F—_F—H—H 5,648 14,351 441 20,440
Charge for the year A G AT e 7 966 59 1,032
At 31 December 2016 REZNEF A=A 5,655 15317 500 21,472
Net book value: HRTHI M -
At 31 December 2016 RER—ANEHFZA=—H 17 3,609 145 3,771
At 31 December 2015 REE AL =H 24 4,575 204 4,803
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12. NEW DRUG TECHNOLOGIES 12. FrEERHT
Total
AT
RMB’000
A RH#000
Cost: JAR:
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 20135, HWoE—HF—H—H, “ZF—HF+_H=4+—H,
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 ZEANFE A AR ANFE = 16,681
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  ZFH S M IREEE -
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 20135, W oE—HFE—H—H, “Z—HFE+_H=4+—H,
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 ZEANFE-HA A E AN A 16,681
Net book value: Wi T Y
At 31 December 2016 R ANET =1 -
At 31 December 2015 PEE—RET A=A -
The new drug technologies included above have finite ERPB 2 B A A BR A AR, TR B
useful lives over which the assets are amortised. The P o A [ T BB R AT il 2 B 2 kA 2 B
amortisation period for development costs incurred on the AR 2 L5

Group’s new drug technologies is five years.

No amortisation charges are included in administrative TR NN T B TR A S T O R A SE
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss GiEzesE [ HMAEEH ) M.
during the year (2015: Nil).

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13. fifBAH]
The following list contains only the particulars of NERHA AL E AT REE . B A TERA,
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets AR R A 2 AR R 44 2 e i

or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.

TEEREBABERLSTT




2016EERE
ANNUAL REPORT

HE_E—AE+"A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

RIBBEME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Proportion of ownership interest

AR R

Place of Particulars of Group” s Held by
incorporation issued and paid effective the Held by a Principal
Name of subsidiary and business up capital interest company subsidiary Activities
K3 g w1 T o BT e AL RAT F 2y RS J
NSNS JETRATEN Pty Fi BIESEE
Ventureph: British Virgin Islands
e: rephanm " IE;VI et fsands US5100 100% 100% Investment holding
Laboratories (BVI “BVI” v .
Limited (“VP( BVI) i ( ) 100557 Baliicray
1mite e =G ”
YD s s pvr )
Venovo Pharma USs§1 Inv holdi
BVI 4 100% 100% nvestment holding
US Inc (“VP(US)”) BVI 1658 e
Inactive
VPSCRO Group BVI Us$1 100% _ 100% s
Inc. (“VPSCRO” BVI 2 —
( ) [ES]E
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
s h cod ic and clinical research of drug;
e 4 Beijing, the PRC US$200,000 ) pharmacodynamic and clinical research of drugs
BRI ATRAT . o 100% - 100% PR PR S KRG T AR DT Bg L
LHEEa 200,000357C HE i RIREE i M REE 2 BRI S I 3 2 487
PR
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
N L Beiiine. the PRC development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
At e qj‘]%l[ji; ¢ U$$200.000 100% _ 100% pharmacodynamic and clinical research of drugs
AR A AL 200,00097¢
B WRGE BB . AN A B, P DAV A
Bl AN T 2 TR ;4 2 B
LB VRTIE N
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
S AT AL Beiiine, the PRC development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
Elant ki EIJ}ng; © US§200.000 100% _ 100% pharmacodynamic and clinical research of drugs
SRR A L 200,000357¢ . : \ "
WFE R PR AE s R IREE 0 M AR i IFE M B R 2R )
B RIRGE R R Ar IR BT PR M 5 3 i 2 262K
B VR
Research and development of new drug preparations, raw
materials, supplementary materials and biodrugs technological
QU Ay Beijing, the PRC US$865.000 transfer and services
i RAT RE 865,000 100% B 100% By s rasmm, JEADEL. WEVRADE (RIBAIEI
Tl BB B R
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
N A EZ 2 Taizhou, the PRC development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
E e alz\ OP’ © RMB1,000,000 100% _ 100% pharmacodynamic and clinical research of drugs
SR RN 1,000,008 : . » » ,
WFTE M BB 2E i ROREE S G T BFSE M BB AR
%;ﬁ'ﬁ %%%;ﬁuﬁﬁlﬁz%z&@hﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ, fiﬂﬁ'.zﬁ%iﬁ
W5 R EGIRRT S
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
S BTl A Hai the PRC development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
M R alfliil” ¢ US$360.000 100% _ 100% pharmacodynamic and clinical research of drugs
RHEBFIE I 360,000 . - e
WFTE R B AE s R IREE W MO AR i BIFSE M B8R 2R )
BT AR T 5 2 BT s 2 B
T MG KRS
Manufacturing and sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients
TH T B 4 B Hanzhong, the PRC US$600,000 products
i N B o 51% - 51% )
GEIL T AR R 600,000 75 T
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs: technological transfer of and services for the research and
[l a4 Xizang, the PRC RMB$1,000,000 development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
AR AT] R i AL £1.000,0007C 100% - 100% pharmacodynamic and clinical research of drugs
L A = 3 B B
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The following table lists out the information relating to
HEIT A A BE EE (L TR/ E] the only subsidiary of

the Group which has a material non-controlling interest
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FERHG AL ME A I R (T AR
fil ) AR R 2 R LA e R AR TAT R
AR 2Bk ORI MBS R BRI R AR T 2

(NCI). The summarized financial information presented RIS AT A
below represents the amounts before any inter-company
eliminations.
2016 2015
TENE ZE LR
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
AR¥TIT ARKTT
NCI percentage et Bk s 5ot 49% 49%
Current assets i 10 10
Non-current assets e d & e 5 5
Current liabilities VIR 19 @1
Net liabilities T @ 6)
Carrying amount of NCI Az Rl i 2 MR TEI(E - -
Revenue VPN 2 -
Profit/(loss) for the year AAE PR/ (518) 2 (274)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AT AR (548 #%E 2 (274)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI 53 WE AR B AR 2 6 R/ O HE) - (134)
Cash flows used in operating activities A T T - 19)
14. WORK-IN-PROGRESS 14 TEEM
2016 2015
TERNE SRR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ETT  ARWMTIT
Cost KR 95,621 96,208
Less: Provisions for impairments ol AR ot el A (93,535) (93,535)
2,086 2,673
The movements in the provisions for impairments of TEFE B B3 T
work-in-progress are as follows:
Contracted Non-contracted Total
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
SETED ENES At
NEHETIT ANEHETIT ARBEET T
At 1 January 2015 WoE—FE—H—H 49,140 41,229 90,369
Provision for impairment for 2015 74 &y 3,166 B 3,166
At 31 December 2015, R FERE A=
1 January 2016 and R NFEH AR
31 December 2016 E—NFE+ZH=1+—H 52,306 41,229 93.535
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The impairments for contracted work-in-progress were due
to the total contract cost exceeding the total contract values
while the impairments for non-contracted work-in-progress
were due to the suspension of non-contracted
Pharmaceutical Development Service (PDS) projects.

15. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

BRI E
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EURT R AL it VR A AR Pl TR A5 AT B I A5 2
B, MARHT HIAEE i VR I M A AR SR MR AL B A T o7
BRI ZEY B B I I

15. PR AR M TR R 4

2016 2015
ZENE AR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TTT  ARKTIT

Trade receivables JEICHE K 551 1,166
Bills receivable e - 2,202
551 3,368

(a) Ageing analysis

The Group grants credit periods normally ranging from 15
days to 30 days to its customers (2015: ranging from 15
days to 30 days). The bills receivable as at 31 December
2015 were non-interest bearing bank acceptance bills and
are aged within 6 months. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables, based on the invoice dates and net of
allowances for doubtful debts, is as follows:

(a) JRER AT

A R PRI S — A5 H E30H(
TE RS 1sHE30H). RoFE-HAETFH =
+— B RS EEAR A R B S BRA TR S b Sl A
—HFEF A = HESEA NE . AR
J73 B R AR AR AR R e B4 Al P 4 e e )

.

BRI JGHGEST B

B H, BRI R R (B R
A A ENOH ) 148 52 H 0 AR R SR
ZIRE AT

2016 2015
TENE S T

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARWFT AR¥BETT

1-30 days 1-30 H 518 1,166
61-90 days 61-90H 33 -
551 1,166

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amounts are remote, in which
case the impairment losses are written off against trade
receivables directly (see note 2(1)(i)).

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, no balances in the trade

receivables of the Group were individually determined to
be impaired.
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(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired
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(c) AP RSO B A T

2016 2015
ZEBME EF A
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
AR¥TFTT  ARWTT
Neither past due nor impaired fieia B R 551 1,166

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there were no
recent histories of default.

16. TRADE DEPOSITS PAID

Trade deposits paid represented guarantee deposits paid
to customers in connection with service agreements
signed for the provision of post marketing research and
academic promotion services.

g6 1 TR MR AR WS B 2 S BSr R PR,
S P BOR R [ ] 2 [ B AC 8 AT
6. FNEBHE

TR SEF SN TR 2 A B _E T AR R AT A 22
TR o i 5 ) ) PRl <6 o

17. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17, TR A Rk
2016 2015
Notes :%;4/\4\55'3 :%’\'gﬂfﬁ
W RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREEFT AR®ETT
Prepayments TEAIER 61 538
Deposits i< 25 25
Other receivables HoAtb UK (a) 1,410 769
Amounts due from directors R (b) 88 -
At 31 December TR R oAt AR 1,584 1,332

(a) Impairment of other receivables

Impairment losses in respect of other receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amounts are remote, in
which case the impairment losses are written off against
trade receivables directly (see note 2(i)(i)).

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, no balance in the other
receivables of the Group were individually determined to
be impaired.

(b)Amounts due from directors
The amounts due from directors, disclosed pursuant to

section 383(1)(d) to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, are as follows:

(a) HAb IR SR
I A A I A A ] o 2B I 2 T REA R, R
FL A B R R SR IR A < UL 18080 FH s Mt

o A AR Z AT REMEIOVE, A TR W e 4R B I
TR S B SR e (RMIE23) () -

BREFENFEF A= B TERET A
= HHA B A R E R 5 2

(b) EFAK

W CATHEE> 55383(1)(d)§2 HHAHN
SN

hEE®EEAERALESS



2016EERE

ANNUAL REPORT B3R Bt
BE—FE-—AE+-A=+—HIEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Maximum amount

outstanding
during the year
B R AT K
At31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015 At 1 January 2015
A E IR R E AR N H—HA 2016 2015
Name T H=1+—H +H=1—H —H—H SN AR
i A 5 ;
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ANRHETIT ANRHETFIT ARHEETIT ARHETIC ARMTIT
Dr Maria Xue Mei Song 60 - - 73 -
Mr. Michael Su 28 - - 30 -
(254
88 -

The amounts due from directors are non-trade related,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

R AT B MR SR R IR R

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. & RBEFMHEE
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprises: (a) Bl K Bl S HIH H 345
2016 2015
BN E  CE N
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
AR¥FT  ARWETC
Cash at bank and on hand TTHS AT M HE A8 4 1,753 6,775

Cash at bank and on hand of the Group comprise bank balances 45 B [ ER1T 45 8% M I 4 HERF A5 AR AH Al SRATASRR AT
that are interest-bearing at prevailing market rates. il ESaEs
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(b)Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to cash

generate from operations:
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(b) BREEHTREF/ (5 H) BLAR S 268 IS Bl < < IR

2016 2015
TENE CEF L
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥FT AR¥ETC
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRAT R R/ (518 2,085 (3,376)
Adjustments for: bk
Depreciation EiiE 1,032 1,207
Interest expenses FESEH 800 817
Interest income FEMN ) (7)
Impairment losses on work-in-progress TEZE A B 1R - 3,166
Loss on revaluation of derivative financial liabilities i =C=e ] il - 2,731
Share-based payment expenses DA AR 2 et A3 1,424 1,341
Exchange losses on derivative financial liabilities kR i - 343
Reversal of impairment losses on other receivables Al MR AR A ] - (89)
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital eGSR SEEH R4 5,332 6,133
Decrease/(increase) in work-in-progress TR S b (BE ) 587 (337)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivable JEMCR B (5 ) 2,817 (3,318)
Increase in trade deposits paid TR EHAT G (3,100) -
Increase in prepayments and other receivables At EGSEEn (252) (743)
Increase in other payables and accruals JREASF AR B At B A 761 3,266
Decrease in receipts in advance TG (12,901) (1,472)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations K W (i S 4 (6,756) 3,529
19. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 19. EATRRR. HABBEAE O Rt A
ACCRUED CHARGES
2016 2015
ZERE SR
Notes s s
. RMB™ 000 RMB" 000
HIE AR ARETC
Trade payables JEAT R ©) 108 -
Other payables Hofh AR 3,728 4227
Accrued expenses JEET 22 3,455 2,550
Amounts due to related parties JREA B 35 T (a) 2,987 2,987
Litigation claims payable JEAFEARTRA T () 13,033 12,786
23,311 22,550

() MEAST BREE 7 B AR %0 B 388 [ e (R ok

(a) Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and without fixed repayment terms.

(b) Several subsidiaries of the Company are defendants in
various lawsuits and claims arising out of the normal
course of the Group’s business. The amount represents the
outstanding claims payable to plaintiffs according to the
respective court judgments.

(c

~

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice dates,
is as follows:

Z B

(o) ZAS 52 B8] P 1) S5 T g 2 ] PR SE 35 8 1T gl o o
AN s Ry i B 2R PR R R e R MBS D4
CHN S

(o) ARH AT

g H , ORI (D AR
MR LA RSO P ) %3 552 FLUT R T B R R
M RE AT T
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2016 2015

ZENE CE A
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TIC  AR®TIC

1-30 days 1-30H 108 -
108 -
All of the other payables are expected to be settled or JIv A LA A R R E — 4 9 A e ey e SR AR
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on =
demand.
20. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 20. FEHOK
2016 2015

—Z—FE  E—HIE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TIT AR®TIC

Receipts in advance TR 4,855 24,215

At 1 January w—H—H 24,215 25,687

Cash receipts for the year AR 552 12,323

Reclassification to amounts due to related parties — Note 21 A A R 2 B T AR B R 21 (6,459) -

Revenue recognised for the year AN (13,453) (13,795)

At 31 December wtTH=t—H 4,855 24215
Included in the receipts in advance is an amount of RMB300,000 AE H, ARG ERE AR 300,00070 (- F T
(2015: RMB6,145,000) representing suspended projects which o NRH6,145,00070) 1Y B BT YT H TG . 724
are pending mutual agreement between the Group and the TEIMCGH Y R FR 7 0 1o A S [ B i R AR UE

customers on final settlement in respect of the deposits received.

21. LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES 21 BT Ak
The loans from related companies are unsecured, non-interest PR =T i N A ) = W c N ST R g
bearing and specifically provided to finance the daily operations S AT AR UE SN H = HAEE . AR E T
of the Group. The loans are repayable on 30 June 2018 but SRR BERAFNE R AR ek, BRI, BT 5
contain repayment on demand clauses and, therefore, are AR TR E A .

classified as current liabilities. The loans are not expected to be
settled within one year.

22. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND DERIVATIVE 22 TR BATAE SR AR
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
On 24 December 2014, the Company issued unlisted convertible W —EFH U H, RAFST AL
notes with a face value of US$1,000,000 and a maturity date of 24 1,000,000 702 AE LT AT B A TR . TR G0 A A
December 2016. The notes were unsecured and bear no interest. A S0 B AEHT AN AR . B A TSR A 2 3 HF ul
The noteholder had the right to convert the notes into ordinary 2 AT LASTARAE A I 0. 1038 T34 PT A5 05 S e i A
shares at any time up to maturity at a conversion price of HK$0.10 ) AE R o AN F T BE R L B B AT B R AR R
each, subject to anti-dilutive adjustments, or redeem them at 100% EREE.

of the nominal value of the convertible notes upon maturity. The
Company could, at any time prior to the maturity date, repay the
outstanding principal of the notes.

86 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.



B RENE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The convertible notes contained two components, namely, the host
liability component and a compound derivative component
consisting of the conversion option and the redemption option. The
convertible notes are denominated in USD, which is a currency other
than the Company’s functional currency. The conversion and
redemption options in the convertible notes did not call for an
exchange at a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments for a fixed amount of cash, denominated in USD.
Accordingly, the options were accounted for separately as a
derivative liability, which is not closely related to the host debt
component. The fair values of the debt component and the
derivative component were determined at the date of issue.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the debt component was carried at
amortised cost while the derivative component was measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value being recognised in profit or loss.

The effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 12.822% per annum.

The convertible notes were converted to 77,500,000 ordinary shares
at HK$0.10 each during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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AR B TE B R ER A ER  —E G AT
A AL S TG RE AN S [ IR . TR h ST
], HARAFIRIBAEEE . AT EUR s b ) asoR 5
(] SERRE 7 A A ) ] ] M R e T L AR S B
HRLLRTTRME R Bl . MHIERYE, SRR 2 B i
Fratim f—ME AT A SR e i, BRERRR R 2 DI
B E RS S AIAT A2 W0 O 2 Fo B (B R AR T G (5
HIBEATH RIER o FERIRRT AR, [EHHR 20
JrAGE TR, ATAER D A A AR, A A E s
it A B

BB R IR IR < BRI R 12,8228

AT R fE 2 B AR S LA E A o 10T T R T
77,500,000 A2 ] B K o

AR 000
Movement in the convertible notes CIEiJidiess )
— liability component: - AU
At 1 January 2015 W —TFE—H—H 4,844
Interest charged FIE#EM 685
Exchange realignment e 250
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 ~ JAZE—T4FE+H =1+—H ML 4F—H—H 5,779
Interest charged RS2 H 725
Conversion during the year SRR (6,504)
At 31 December 2016 REFE N A= -
Movement in the convertible notes AR RS )
— derivative component: - ATk g Rl A
At 1 January 2015 W —fE—H—H 1,623
Fair value changes I PEAE 2,731
Exchange realignment i 93
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R _F—HF+ A =+—HE F— F—H—H 4.447
Conversion during the year U AT R SR (4.447)
At 31 December 2016 REZE—NFEFZH=+—H -

The fair value of the derivative component of the convertible notes as
at 31 December 2015 was calculated using the Binominal Lattice
model with the major input used in the model as follow:

e R R+ T = H AR T A TR 2
PRI —IERGAEE, A SR T

2015 2015
Stock price HK$0.249 JeAE H515$0.249
Expected volatility 127.66% TR 127.66%
Risk-free rate US:0.644% fire i US:0.644%

TEE®REEARALESY
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Any changes in the major input into the model would have
resulted in changes in the fair value of the derivative
component. The change in the fair value of the derivative
component during the year ended 31 December 2015
resulted in a fair value loss of RMB 2,731,000 which was
included in the “Loss on revaluation of derivative financial
instruments” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2015.

B REME
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FR R 2 e 2 AT H), s sfrd: T
B2 AP EA s . fd: THE 2 A FE
WEE - F I H = H IR N 2
TR B A TE TR RE2,731,00000, 23 T AT
ANRE R —RET+H =+ HIFEEZ 54618
#i M HAb S BN TAT A T B2 AP EE
W) HT

23. BANK BORROWINGS 23, SRATEK
2016 2015
ZENTF TR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ANR#ETITT  ARBTIC
Bank loan FRATEK 1,500 1,500

The loan as at 31 December 2016 was unsecured, interest
bearing at the Loan Prime Rate of Beijing Bank plus 92
points and was guaranteed by a director of the Company,
Dr. Song Xue Mei, Maria. The interest rate during the year
was 5.22% per annum. The loan is repayable on 2
December 2017 but may be renewed upon maturity.

The bank loan as at 31 December 2015 was unsecured,
interest bearing at a variable rate based on the People’s
Bank of China rate and was guaranteed by a director of the
Company, Dr. Song Xue Mei, Maria. The interest rate during
the year was ranged from 5.22% to 7.2% per annum. The
loan was repaid on 24 November 2016.

24. INCOME TAXES PAYABLE

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

A RN T = B A SRAT RO ST
B A m o — (o 2, R T M LR IR A £
FE PR B AR 2 A R1,500,0007C  SEARITERAT &
ACATE B AR AR AU RURAT 4R R 2R B2 B TR
o T E—NFEF A = HIEFERFER RS
5.2/ ATRHAR - FLET A AR
AWATREIH H A

AR HAR T S H R TR T
&M$A7H$ N RS R B
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%k%@ummmﬁoﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

AL AR R N SR T RER R . i S —
£$+ H~+~Et$ﬁ%$ﬂ$ﬁsm@$7z
JH o SRATESRZEIAS N AR A I R
AT FIT H 4 &

24. JEATBURFIH

(a) AR A A BHIR DA BT BUR B T -

2016 2015
ZENE  CEF N
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥FITT  ARMTT
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax AR EE A R B A S P R s - 111
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid [E (s RECYNEREE NI o Efre SR T - ()
- 104
Balance of PRC enterprise Income
Tax relating to prior year DATITAF B H 2 A [ R B £ SE P A3 B 188 5 24 24
24 128
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(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(q), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses and deferred income of
RMB22,942,000 (2015: RMB20,887,000) and RMB 1,214,000
(2015: RMB6,054,000), respectively, as it is not assured
future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. The tax losses do not expire under current tax

BE-ZE—AR"E+"A=t+—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(b) AR 2 B SE AT I ¥

HRIEFE2(q s 2 Gtk AR AR
B TSRS s PR A TRUICER 23 N REH622,942,0000C (-
F—HAE: ANRK20,887,00000) KA E#E1,214,000
TG (CE—HAE: ARI56,054,0000T) ZEIEFIIEHE
B, JRBETER A BB el A i [ N BN KT RE
JEE AR AR IR A P ARG T ] 2 A B s 1R A 3
MRS 722 B o ARMERR R TR vl 400 B s TR Ak
AT AR S AT

legislation. The tax losses will expire within five years
from the end of the respective reporting period.

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25, A
(a) Issued share capital (a) O TIEAR
2016 2016 2015 2015
A XN SRR R
Number of RMB’ 000 Number of RMB’ 000
shares” 000 PNE ST shares” 000 ARHETIT
JBH#C 000 B 000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: £ 85/7T M EHUE
At 1 January A . 915,272 81,699 915,272 81,699
Issue of shares upon conversion of —H—H
convertible notes (b) STARTT IR SR 77,500 6,974 - -
At 31 December RoHA=+—H 992,772 88,673 915,272 81,699
(b) Conversion of convertible notes (b)FTm] e 24

B 223 A AT I A U A LA ST R A
0.10HETT ST 177,500,000B A% 2 71 1310 e

The convertible notes as referred to in note 22 above were
converted to 77,500,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.10 each
during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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(Ot MEE X ig

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Statutory reserve and statutory enterprise expansion fund () BEAE M B RS

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Company’s
Articles of Association and board resolutions of the
Company, the Company is required to transfer 10% of
its net profit, as determined under PRC accounting
regulations, to a statutory reserve until the fund
aggregates 50% of the Company’s registered capital.
The transfers to this reserve must be made before
distribution of dividends to shareholders. The statutory
reserve shall only be used to make good previous year
losses, to expand the Company production operations
or to increase the capital of the Company. Upon approval
by a resolution at a shareholder’s general meeting, the
Company may transform its statutory reserve into
share capital and issue bonus shares to existing
shareholders in proportion to their original shareholdings
or to increase the nominal value of each share
currently held by them, provided that the balance of
the reserve fund after such issue is not less than 25% of
the registered capital. Moreover, the subsidiaries of
the Company established in the PRC are required to
transfer 5% or 10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to
the enterprise expansion fund.

(ii) Special reserve

The special reserve represents the differences between
the nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI) (a holding
company of the other members of the Group prior to
the Group Reorganisation) and the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation.

(iii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional
contributions made by the shareholders of the
Company and the additional contributions made by the
minority shareholder of the subsidiary of the Company
prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on The
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. It also included the premium of
the issued share capital of the Company.

(iv) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the net assets of the subsidiaries and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.
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The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise the capital reserve and contributed
surplus. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, dividends shall be payable out of profits or
other reserves, including the share premium account, of the
Company. Under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, the Company must be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business
immediately following the distribution of any dividends.

26. OPERATING LEASES

At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:
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AN IR IR T R e CU R B A o (8 A fil
i BREUGEE N RFHA . A AR, B
2 1 JEL 2 I A i ) A 6 L (B
Ry, Loh, REHSMEZ AFACEE
BRI, AArEERERIRERE 2%, e
T H W2 AR

26. FHEEfTEK

BB A=, R A
P P M2 AR S A -

2016 2015

TRONE S AR

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR AR®TTC

Within one year —4EN 47 17

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group in respect of machinery and land and buildings.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one year,
with an option to renew when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased every year to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes any contingent
rentals.

27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the relevant local authorities whereby the
PRC subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Schemes at rates which range from 0.3% to 20% (2015:
0.3% to 20%) of the eligible employees’ salaries during the
year. The relevant local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 20 June 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorized, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options at predetermined
considerations to subscribe for shares of the Company.
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(a) The terms and conditions of the grants given are as follows:

2016: A
Atl Granted Exercised  Lapsed At 31
Exercise January during during the  during December

Grant date price Note 2016 2016 year the year 2016
HEAE 301 T MITE gy R RRERE WA R CE A

F-H—H &l Frid R +ZH=+—H
10 August 2006 HK$0.36
10/8/2%)06 HEWE3 61l (iii) 928,800 - - (928,800) -
10 May 2007 HK$0.625 .
L0/5/2007 k62 S (v) 1,950,100 - - - 1,950,100
; 25’;01029009 %ﬁ;ﬂ; 2? I ) 4,330,800 - - (412,000) 3,918,800
28 /J6‘/‘;g 125015 %ﬁiﬂ? fm (Vi) 20,670,000 - - (3:370,000) 17,300,000

3
27,879,700 - - (4,710,800) 23,168,900
2015: B4R
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At 31
Exercise January during during the during the December
Grant date price Note 2015 2015 year year 2015
R H P8 {ipes REE AR RARER AT AR R TER A
—H—H i 1T R +ZH=1t—H
2 March 2005 HK$0.52 .
2132005 JEIES 2l ® 706400 ) ) (706,400) )
14 December 2005  HK$0.45 ..
14/12/2005 sl L 72000 ) ) (72,000 )
igé;;§;§2006 ;gﬁ;ggﬁl (iii) 1,018,800 - - (90,000) 928,800
10 May 2007 HK$0.625 .
10/5/2(})]07 WG 5] (iv) 2,058,100 - - (108,000) 1,950,100
; 25)21101029009 %ﬁ;ﬂ:gfm ) 5,392,800 - - (1,062,000) 4,330,800
30 June 2015 HK$0.45 .
30/6/2015 o (vi) - 20,670,000 - - 20,670,000
9,248,100 20,670,000 - (2,038,400) 27,879,700
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Notes: FRFEE:

(i) These options were exercisable within the period @) MR A BB A = CHE R
commencing from 2 March 2005 to 1 March 2015. The = H—H IR A A J AR - Jﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ@ﬁ/\\—’g
options were valid and effective until 1 March 2015. —HAEZH—HER

(ii) These options were exercisable within the period (i) BTN EFEHE T AN AE
commencing from 14 December 2005 to 13 December TLAEFZH T = H R A A WA @%Hﬁ%
2015. The options were valid and effective until 13 R _F AR H = H ARG
December 2015.

(iii) These options were exercisable within the period (iil) 7% SE MR A R R NAE A T H R ZF N
commencing from 10 August 2006 to 9 August 2016. JNA U H AR AR A TR o 2SR RE A &
The options were valid and effective until 9 August 2016. A YINEPINEE Y &

(iv) These options are exercisable within the period (iv) ZEBRETR - FZLHEAA+HZE - F—LF
commencing from 10 May 2007 to 9 May 2017. The T I H AR AL A o "X R i — &
options are valid and effective until 9 May 2017. —EERHILH LR

(v) These options are exercisable within the period (V) R AR IERE A AR NN H R U

commencing from 7 April 2009 to 6 April 2019. The P9 H 7N H IR R A A IRy o LIRS I =&
options are valid and effective until 6 April 2019. —IJUEM AN H KR

(vi) These options are exercisable in three trench with the (vi) WS M RORE AT Ay = A TAl . R :5 —f\ﬁrf\ﬂ =1
maximum percentage of options exercisable with the AE=F—tFEAA T ZF—EFEAH=
periods commencing from 30 June 2016 to 29 June 2017, THEZEZ—)/)FENHZHILE R =R —/UERH
30 June 2017 to 29 June 2018 and on 30 June 2018 being =“+HLUE, 21LA40%- 70% 5 1009% 2 AT AT
40%, 70% and 100%, respectively. The options are valid JRHEE 43 [:[CJZBEEEE%K/\ TR o R IR A —
and effective until June 2026. T NN A T HILH R

(b)The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b)Y RE 2 0 H RO A T E A T

options are as follows:

2016 2015
TR T AR
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average exercise of options average exercise of options
price HK$ (‘000) price HK$ (“‘000)
InRETy WSR2 # H JInRE~T-4 W = S H
I BT ( ‘000 T ) Tl ( ‘000 TR
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 0.457 27,897,700 0.473 9,248,100
A H—HE ATl
Lapsed during the year 0.431 (4,710,800) 0.472 (2,038,400)
TAARAE L RESH
Granted during the year - - 0.45 20,670,000
TAARAETT 7
Outstanding at the end of the year 0.462 23,168,900 0.457 27,879,700
AT H = H AR T
Exercisable at the end of the year 0.474 12,788,900 0.477 7,209,700

WA=t BT

T EBEREEBEAR~LSAOIS
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The options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.53 years
(2015: 4.35 years).

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
share options granted is measured based on a Binomial
Lattice model. The contractual lives of the share options

P H R RIS R AE T A 535 (
TE A 435%) .

(c) IR ME 2 > S M R AR

AREE LR TR 2 R 2 A Rl J52%
TR BB A iR . TR B st
Sl A AR R . I IRERE 2 S A AR T AR
R A2 8. AR HBCEA
IR R Y

are used as an input and expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the Binomial Lattice model.

2015 AR

Fair value at measurement date HK$0.209 - HK$0.2881 AFEHE H 2 A E HEHE20.911L - WEHE 288111l
Share price HK$0.43 JBef a3l
Exercise price HK$0.45 1T{HE(E 451
Expected volatility (expressed as 89.29%  TEIAUKIE 89.29%

weighted average volatility used

in the modeling under Binomial

Lattice model)
Option life (expressed as weighted 10 years TESA I IBORE 2 A 800 10 4

average life used in the modeling

under Binomial Lattice model)
Expected dividends 0% TR 0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on 1.788% 48 o g 1) 1.788%

Exchange Fund Notes)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility T 190 0 2 TR b g S, SRR TR B R R
AP 2 AT AL T DA o YRR e R o
BEE. Frgk i BB A B S8 S A R E A

AIEEE R

(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
lives of the share options) and adjusted for any expected
changes to historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumption could materially affect the fair value
estimates.

Share options were granted under service conditions
which have not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There
were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.
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29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group wholly related to amounts paid to the Company’s
directors, as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:
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29. EABEA L5

(B#EE TN B2 4

G T R G BN B I < A A ) A ] B
A FITA M E SR, W

2016 2015

EBNE CEFHE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥TT  ARKTIC
Short term employee benefits KL e B AR A 1,508 1,463
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plan BB A AR 91 85
Share based payments JBAS A (AR A 714 600
2,313 2.148

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

6(b)).

(b) Financing arrangements

ORI TETRA L (b)) -

(b) Ik

2016 2015
“FRE A
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥FT  ARBETIC
Loans from related companies T K
HRHEE (i) AIRAT BRI (Gir) AIRAT] 4,961 -
TLAR B RS SESEH R A T TLRR B TEHS 455 B IR A ] 3.360 -
8,321 -
Other payables due to related companies: HoAtb AT
3r B RS A TR A ] JREA g e S P S A B A ] 383 383
et R B MR AR AT AL 2 R B AR L W B A BR A ] 873 873
JentE 2 A YRR A BR A F] AL B A A M B AR B PR A ] 598 598
3 RS A A B S BT SE Be A FR A 1 AT SR A i BRI S B A BR A 7] 1,133 1,133
2,987 2,987

The loans from related companies are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and were specifically provided to finance the daily
operations of the Group. The loans are repayable on 30 June 2018
but contain repayment on demand clauses and, therefore are
classified as current liabilities. The loans are not expected to be
settled within one year.

The outstanding balances with these related companies which are
included in “Other payables and accruals” (note 19) are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms.

BT (5 RS SR o R T R A SR I A T S
B & NN A = R 7 B e s A B A 20
REOR R IR 2 K, B, BT R RS i 8
A fE.

JEEAST B 2 ) JB AT S R R A I E (R AR 2 A
o MEAT BRI T (S AT BT B I o (B 19).

FEBREEER L TO5
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(c) Receipts in advance
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(o) THISK

2016 2015
ZE N e SE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR#ETFTT ARBTT

ERIEE (R ) HIRAH] HRFILEE (R ARA A - 3.830
T g B 5 8E S A PR ) VLA B 2 2L A SR A A - 2,629
_ 6,459

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group signed
several pharmaceutical research and promotional contracts with
the above related parties and received deposits amounting to
RMB6,459,000. The contracts were terminated during the year
and the receipts in advance brought forward from 2015 of
RMB6,459,000 together with further deposit received of
RMBI1,862,000 were reclassified to loans from related parties
since the related parties agreed to use the deposits paid to provide
funding to finance the daily operations of the Group.

The related companies are under the common control of Mr. Guo
Xia, William, a director of the Company.

(d) Other related parties transactions

(i) The Group had the following significant business transactions
with a related company during the year ended 31 December 2016:

HMECE T T A =T HIEHE, AERBE FERE
TR BT SR SE A IF 5T RT B A R0 B E A N R
6,459,0007C0 IR G RIAAAFE L L o AR BLRH 77 1 o 2
, BT LA A e iR AR SR B R B .
I, TR CIEIE a5 ]%6,459,00070 KA AR R
Y 4 N R 1,862,000 TG 45 21 B EE 7 A8

IR EIH AP — R — William Xia GuotAE % FIRBHE A A
478 FRE S B

(d) HABBHEN 152 5
() AR A AR L Y BR B L2 30

2016 2015
ZENE 2R R
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBETIT ARW¥TT
Name of related party Nature of transactions (Notes)
I\ L 4 Lo e ipEd
AR (BM) ARRATE] Testing services
oA () ARRATE] Pl (i) - 849

(i) The management of the Group is of the opinion that revenue
from the services to the related company were made on normal
commercial terms negotiated between the parties.

(ii) The unsecured bank loan to the Group of RMB1,500,000 was
guaranteed by a director, Dr Maria Xue Mei Song, of the
Company. The details of the guarantee are disclosed in note 23.
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES IN
LEGAL CLAIM

RESPECT OF

As of 31 December 2016, certain of the subsidiaries of the Group
are defendants in proceedings relating to its customers. Based on
respective legal advice and court judgements, management is of
the opinion that the outcome of such proceedings will not be
beyond the existing accruals made for such litigation claims as
disclosed in note 19(b). Accordingly, there will be no significant
impact to the financial status of the Group.

31.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure it is effective and optimises shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group prevailing and projected capital expenditure and
projected investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
consider the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, the return
of capital to shareholders, the issue of new shares or selling assets
to reduce debt.

The Group assesses the total equity/deficiency presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of financial position for capital
management purposes.

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AND FAIR

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arise
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also

exposed to equity price risk arising from its own listed share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used to manage these risks are
described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and cash at bank. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.
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In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure credit is granted to customers
with appropriate credit histories and good reputations
through evaluations on customer past histories of making
payments when due and have the ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customers as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which they
operate. Trade receivables are due within 30 days (2015: 30
days) from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables by geographical locations is mainly in the PRC
which accounted for 94.0% (2015: 97.7%) of the total trade
receivables balance at 31 December 2016. The group also
has a concentration of credit risk on its two largest
customers (2015: three largest customers) which represent
94.0% (2015: 97.7%) of the total trade receivables balance
and of which the largest customer represents 75% (2015:
72.9%) of the total trade receivables balance. For both years,
the two largest customers (2015: three largest customers),
which are engaged in medical related businesses in the PRC,
have good repayment histories and credit quality with
reference to the track records of these customers under
internal assessment by the Group.

The credit risk on cash at bank is limited because the
counterparties are authorised financial institutions with
sound credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, without taking
account of any collateral held, is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowances.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in notes 15 and 17.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the parent company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermained levels of authority. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s liabilities and
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on

non-derivative financial

contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company are required to pay:
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TR AL AR H 2 SMaEZ ST AR
W, WRE A AT BB SRS (A% E
KR s RV B AR s T 2 FIEE R 2
FE)  DAR AR SE 2B (8 8 A B 2 2 Jec B H M
T

2016

CE A

Within 1 year or

More than 1 year

Total contractual

on demand but less than 2 years  undiscounted cash flow ~ Carrying amount
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
CENSIEDR  ERIEN  ARRTEB e RET
ARHETIE AR ARHETIE ARMETIC
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
ARAT AR
Payables and accrued charges
" N 23,311 - 23,311 23,311
LA 4 K 2 >3 >3 >3
Loans from related parties
e 8,321 - 8,321 8,321
FBCWIREEe
Bank borrowings
Py , - L 1,
ST 1,570 570 500
33,202 - 33,202 33,132
2015
e T

Within 1 year or

More than 1 year

Total contractual

on demand but less than 2 years  undiscounted cash flow ~ Carrying amount
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—ENEEEER AR R EN BHRIARSTRIR SR A %Eﬁg
NSO N S N ST AR
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
AEfrAE R a R
Payables and accrued charges 22,550 - 22,550 22,550
A EAS O R T2
Convertible notes 6,520 - 6,520 5,779
AR
Bank borrowings 1,570 - 1,570 1,500
HUTEN
30,640 - 30,640 29,829
Derivative financial liabilities:
ek b il
Derivative financial liabilities
embedded in convertible notes 4.447 4.447 4.447

AR AR - AT A T £

HE®EBARLSEI
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(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits and bank borrowings. The bank deposits and
borrowings bear interest at variable rates and expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk, respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile is
monitored by management.

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in the interest rates of variable rate borrowings and
bank savings prevailing at the reporting date, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
profit after tax and increase/decrease accumulated loss by
approximately RMB71,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax and
accumulated losses by approximately RMB53,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that changes in interest rates occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date. The 100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual end of
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2015.

(d) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
changes in the Company’s own share price to the extent that
the Company’s own equity instruments underlie the fair
values of derivatives or other financial liabilities of the Group.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group was exposed to this risk
through the convertible notes issued by the Company as
disclosed in note 22. The convertible notes were converted to
ordinary shares as at 31 December 2016 and the Company is
no longer exposed to equity price risk as the end of the
reporting period.

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that an
increase/decrease of 10% in the relevant stock market index
(for listed investments), the price/earnings ratios of
comparable listed companies (for unquoted investments) or
the Company’s own share price (for the derivative
component of convertible notes) as applicable, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/decreased the
Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated loss) and other
components of consolidated equity by RMB690,000.
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The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s fair value reserve that would arise assuming that
the changes in the respective quoted share prices occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair values of the
Group’s equity investments would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the relevant share price
that none of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets
would be considered impaired as a result of the short term
fluctuations in the relevant share price, and that all other
variables remain constant.

(e) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
bank accounts that are denominated in a foreign currency,
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily Hong Kong Dollars
(“HKD”) and United States Dollars (“USD”). The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign exchange exposures.

Exposure to currency risks

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end
of the reporting period to currency risks arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to which
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they relate.
2016 2015
A eSS TS
HKD’000 USD’000 HKD’000 USD’000
WIT” 000 3787000 I 000 578000
Cash at bank and on hand 528 32 814 29
Bl MERATAERX
Sensitivity analysis U T

The following table indicates the approximate changes in the
Group’s profit/(loss) after tax and accumulated loss in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposures

at the end of the reporting period. Other components of

equity are not affected by changes in the foreign exchange
rates.
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2016 2015
e A e S T
Effect on Effect
Change in Effect on accumulated . ecton
. Change in loss after tax and
foreign exchange profit after tax loss .
rates RMB® 000 RMB’000 foreign exchange accumulated loss
. Sl tes RMB’000
42 g SEE G oo i
o B RIS mxsn R
=i 2 St N = /,
ARHETE AR e
ARBETIT
HKD
HETT 5% (24) 5% (40)
UsD
250 5% (11) 5% 1)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on the
profit after taxation and retained earnings of each entity of the
Group measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into USD at the exchange rates ruling at the
financial year end date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency risks at the financial year end date, including
intercompany payables and receivables within the Group,
which are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into the Group’s

presentation currency.

(f) Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the input used in the valuation technique as
follows:
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Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 input i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
input i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable input. Unobservable
input are those for which market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable input.

BE_E—A"E+_"_A=+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December

2016 and 2015.
2016 2015
It SN %yt
Level 3 Level 3
=R =R
RMB") 000 RMB", 000
ARHTIT ARHTIT
Derivative financial instruments: T 4 e i
Derivative component embedded T MRS AR - AT A e Eh e
in convertible notes - 4.447
- 4,447
(g) Estimation of fair values (2) A FAEAETAS
Derivative component embedded in convertible notes A HA &S

The fair value of the derivative component embedded in
convertible notes as at 31 December 2015 was valued by
the directors with reference to a valuation report issued by

M TR R - —HEF A =1T—HMAR
B FR B SRR TREELRE R A BN =] Rl it
A A A B R . FEI R 2yl —

HHERIHAZ M. A RENEHEEBHMIE A E
Lattice model and the significant unobservable input used BERR
in the fair value measurement is expected volatility. The

RHL Appraised Ltd and is determined using the Binomial

fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
expected volatility.

BB =AU R T H AR AN E T T =
— H IR AF R BEE AR

The movements during the period in the balance of
these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

2016 2015
TENE SR HAR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARHETIT ARETIT
Derivative component embedded in PR A -
convertible notes IREEE A =N =
At 1 January A—H—H 4,447 1,623
Conversion of convertible notes T AR RS S (4,447) -
Changes in fair value recognised in ARAE S
profit or loss during the year SEH) — 2,731
Exchange realignment [ _ 93
At 31 December AT H=1—H _ 4,447
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The fair values of the convertible notes are estimated as being the
present values of future cash flows, discounted at interest rates
based on the government yield curve as at the end of the
reporting period plus an adequate constant credit spread, adjusted
for the Group’s own credit risk.

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. AT E T I B BBk
THE COMPANY

2016 2015
ZFNME CEF A
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
AR®FT  AR¥ETC
Non—current assets EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries TR RS A T 2 fEn - -
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables FEAH HR AR A R 13,286 13,412
Cash and cash equivalents Bl MBS (EEH 659 841
13,945 14,253
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals HAh AT O ST 9,217 8,449
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEEATF S 2w ke 31,525 29,699
Convertible notes TR AES: - 5,779
Derivative financial liabilities e - 4,447
40,742 48,374
Net current liabilities HRE AR (26,797) (34,121)
Net liabilities AR (26,797) (34,121)
Capital and reserves B Kt
Share capital B 88,673 81,699
Reserves Tt (115,470) (115,820)
Deficiency in assets T i AR (26,797) (34,121)

The Company’ s statement of financial position was approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2017 and

are signed on its behalf by:

A E| ZBABARIRTA —F B =] TR H s R S e, A0 DUR SRS

William Xia GUO Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG
William Xia Guo KEH -
Director Director
o A

34. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES 34, BRI
As at 31 December 2016, the directors consider the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company to be Mr. William
Xia Guo.

WAL, RoE-NETZAE1TH, REERE
P S 2 William Xia GuodE4: .
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35. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group:

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure initiative

1 January 2017

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes:

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised

1 January 2017
losses

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

1 January 2018

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment:
Classification and measurement of share-based

1 January 2018

payment transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4: Applying HKFRS 9

Financial instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance

1 January 2018

contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28: Sale or
contribution of assets between an Investment and its

Annual period

beginning on or
associate or joint venture after a date to
be determined

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below. As
the Group has not completed its assessment, further impacts may
be identified in due course and will be taken into consideration
when determining whether to adopt any of these new
requirements before their effective date and which transitional
approach to take, where there are alternative approaches allowed
under the new standards.
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HKEFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKEFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”’, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKERS 15 in the future may have an impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

including figures in the

loss and other

Certain comparative figures,
consolidated statement of profit or
comprehensive income have been re-presented so that it can

better present the performance of the Group.
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T FEHERE
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS E S
Year ended 31 December
BETA=THIREE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
ETE TR g CF T CRAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AT ARWTIL  ARETT ARKETT  ARETE
Turnover e 28,688 14,931 5,956 20,497 20,241
(Loss)/profit before tax FREEnT (E5tH) /ifl 3,231 (30,966) 44,117 (3,376) 2,085
Income tax T (113) (53) (32) (111) 42
(Loss)/profit after tax before SR B S e i [ 3,118 (31,019) 44,085 (3.487) 2,127
non-controlling interests W (fstR) /R
Non-controlling interests EEatiliEa 89 ()] 32 (134) -
(Loss)/profit for the year after BRAEE R R R 2 3,207 (31,028) 44,117 (3,353) 2,127
non-controlling interests A (F51R) /iG]
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HENARK
As at 31 December
A H = IR
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—ER-TAE RS Z2E R HE &N
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ARETIC AR¥TRT ARWTT ARHETT
Total assets less current liabilities G IR A (2,312) (124,625) (31,055)  (39,668) (25,166)
Non-current liabilities Bl Siii=Uisy
(Convertible notes payable) (AT A B (91,875) - (6,476) - -
Non-controlling interests BByl (157) (166) (134) - -
Deficiency of assets JRER A (94,344) (124,791) (37,656) (39,668) (25,166)

T EEREBERSA107



www.chgi.net




